

LAND WEST OF CHESTERTON

FLOOD RISK ASSESSMENT

FOR

TAYLOR WIMPEY UK LTD



July 2015

Our Ref: RCEF29420-002R

RPS Health, Safety & Environment Unit 12 Watersedge Business Park Modwen Rd, Salford Quays M5 3EZ

Tel: 0161 874 3737



Report Status:	Final Rev 1		
Project Reference:	RCEF29420		
	Name:	Signature:	
Report Author:	Daniel Percival		
Technical Reviewer:	Matthew Bell		
Date:	July 2015		

This report has been prepared in the RPS Group Quality Management System to British Standard EN ISO 9001:2008

RPS Health, Safety & Environment is part of the RPS Group Plc with around 5,000 staff based at over 85 offices located throughout the UK, Ireland and the Netherlands and in the USA, Canada, the Russian Federation, Australia, Malaysia, Singapore and Abu Dhabi. RPS offers an unparalleled range of commercially focused services relating to property and land due-diligence, site development and geoenvironmental investigations (including liability reviews, planning feasibility, EIAs and flood risk, energy & sustainability assessments).





RPS HEALTH, SAFETY & ENVIRONMENT

General Notes

- 1. The following notes should be read in conjunction with the report:
- 2. This report contains only that available factual data for the site, which was obtained from the sources, described in the text. These data were related to the site on the basis of the location information made available to RPS by the client.
- 3. The assessment of the site is based on information supplied by the client. Relevant information was also obtained from other sources.
- 4. The report reflects both the information provided to RPS in documents made available for review and the results of observations and consultations by RPS staff.
- 5. Where data have been supplied by the client or other sources, including that from previous site audits or investigations, it has been assumed that the information is correct but no warranty is given to that effect. While reasonable care and skill has been applied in review of this data no responsibility can be accepted by RPS for inaccuracies in the data supplied.
- 6. This report is prepared and written in the context of the proposals stated in the introduction to this report and its contents should not be used out of context. Furthermore new information, changed practices and changes in legislation may necessitate revised interpretation of the report after its original submission.
- 7. The copyright in the written materials shall remain the property of the RPS Company but with a royaltyfree perpetual licence to the client deemed to be granted on payment in full to the RPS Company by the client of the outstanding amounts.



CONTENTS

PAGE

1	INTRODUCTION	5
2	PLANNING POLICY CONTEXT	6
3	CONSULTATION	.10
4	SITE DESCRIPTION	.11
5	PROPOSED DEVELOPMENT	.12
6	HYDROLOGICAL SETTING	.13
7	HYDROGEOLOGICAL SETTING	.14
8	EXISTING DRAINAGE / WATER MAINS	.16
9	FLOOD RISK AND MITIGATION	.17
10	SURFACE WATER MANAGEMENT	.20
11	SEQUENTIAL TEST AND EXCEPTION TEST	.24
12	SUMMARY AND CONCLUSIONS	.25

FIGURES

- 1 SITE LOCATION PLAN
- 2 ENVIRONMENT AGENCY FLOOD MAP

APPENDICES

- A THAMES WATER SEWER IMPACT STUDYB
- B TOPOGRAPHIC SURVEY
- C ILLUSTRATIVE MASTERPLAN
- D THAMES WATER SEWER PLANS
- E IOH 124 METHOD GREENFIELD CALCULATION
- F CONCEPTUAL SURFACE AND FOUL WATER ATTENUATION PLAN
- G MICRO DRAINAGE WINDES MODELLING ASSESSMENT



1 INTRODUCTION

- 1.1 RPS was commissioned to undertake a Flood Risk Assessment of land situated North of Green Lane, Chesterton in relation to the proposed residential development. The site has been granted outline planning permission (ref: 14/01737/OUT) and therefore this report is intended to support the full planning application.
- 1.2 The aim of the Flood Risk Assessment is to outline the potential for the site to be impacted by flooding, the impacts of the proposed development on flooding in the vicinity of the site, and the proposed measures which could be incorporated into the development to mitigate the identified risk. The report has been produced in accordance with the guidance detailed in the National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF). Reference has also been made to the CIRIA SUDS manual (C697), BRE Digest 365 Soakaway Design, the Cherwell and West Oxfordshire Strategic Flood Risk Assessment (SFRA).
- 1.3 This report has been produced in consultation with the Sustainable Places Team at the Environment Agency. The site is not located within an Internal Drainage Board (IDB) District.
- 1.4 This report is not intended to provide formal details of the final drainage design for the development. It provides information regarding the capabilities of the conceptual surface water drainage strategy to meet the requirements of the NPPF.
- 1.5 The desk study was undertaken by reference to information provided / published by the following bodies:
 - Environment Agency;
 - Centre for Ecology and Hydrology;
 - British Geological Survey;
 - Ordnance Survey; and
 - Thames Water.
- 1.6 A site visit was conducted on 25th March 2014.



2 PLANNING POLICY CONTEXT

National Planning Policy

- 2.1 The National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF) released in March 2012, advises of the requirements for a site specific Flood Risk Assessment (FRA) for any of the following cases:
 - All proposals (including minor development and change of use) located within the Environmental Agency designated floodplain, recognised as either Flood Zone 2 (medium probability) or Flood Zone 3 (high probability);
 - ["] All proposals greater than 1ha in area located in Flood Zone 1 (low probability);
 - All proposals within an area which has critical drainage problems (as notified to the Local Planning Authority by the Environment Agency); and
 - "Where proposed development may be subject to other sources of flooding.

Local Planning Policy

The Cherwell Local Plan (2011 . 2031) was formally adopted by Cherwell District Council on 20th July 2015. The plan contains the following policies relating to flood risk and drainage:

Policy ESD 6 - Sustainable Flood Risk Management

The Council will manage and reduce flood risk in the district through using a sequential approach to development; locating vulnerable developments in areas at lower risk of flooding. Development proposals will be assessed according to the sequential approach and where necessary the exceptions test as set out in the NPPF. Development will only be permitted in areas of flood risk when there are no reasonably available sites in areas of lower flood risk and the benefits of the development outweigh the risks from flooding.

In addition to safeguarding floodplains from development, opportunities will be sought to restore natural river flows and floodplains, increasing their amenity and biodiversity value. Building over or culverting of watercourses should be avoided and the removal of existing culverts will be encouraged.

Existing flood defences will be protected from damaging development and where development is considered appropriate in areas protected by such defences it must allow for the maintenance and management of the defences and be designed to be resilient to flooding.

Site specific flood risk assessments will be required to accompany development proposals in the following situations:



- All development proposals located in flood zones 2 or 3
- Development proposals of 1 hectare or more located in flood zone 1
- Development sites located in an area known to have experienced flooding problems
- Development sites located within 9m of any watercourses.

Flood risk assessments should assess all sources of flood risk and demonstrate that:

- There will be no increase in surface water discharge rates or volumes during storm events up to and including the 1 in 100 year storm event with an allowance for climate change (the design storm event)
- Developments will not flood from surface water up to and including the design storm event or any surface water flooding beyond the 1 in 30 year storm event, up to and including the design storm event will be safely contained on site.

Development should be safe and remain operational (where necessary) and proposals should demonstrate that surface water will be managed effectively on site and that the development will not increase flood risk elsewhere, including sewer flooding.

Policy ESD 7 - Sustainable Drainage Systems (SuDS)

All development will be required to use sustainable drainage systems (SuDS) for the management of surface water run-off.

Where site specific Flood Risk Assessments are required in association with development proposals, they should be used to determine how SuDS can be used on particular sites and to design appropriate systems.

In considering SuDS solutions, the need to protect ground water quality must be taken into account, especially where infiltration techniques are proposed. Where possible, SuDS should seek to reduce flood risk, reduce pollution and provide landscape and wildlife benefits. SuDS will require the approval of Oxfordshire County Council as LLFA and SuDS Approval Body, and proposals must include an agreement on the future management, maintenance and replacement of the SuDS features.

Policy ESD 8: Water Resources

The council will seek to maintain water quality, ensure adequate water resources and promote sustainability in water use.

Water quality will be maintained and enhanced by avoiding adverse effects of development on the water environment. Development proposals which would adversely affect the water quality of



surface or underground water bodies, including rivers, canals, lakes and reservoirs, as a result of directly attributable factors, will not be permitted.

Development will only be permitted where adequate water resources exist, or can be provided without detriment to existing uses. Where appropriate, phasing of development will be used to enable the relevant water infrastructure to be put in place in advance of development commencing.



Policy ESD 9 - Protection of the Oxford Meadows SAC

Developers will be required to demonstrate that:

- During construction of the development there will be no adverse effects on the water quality or quantity of any adjacent or nearby watercourse
- During operation of the development any run-off of water into adjacent or surrounding watercourses will meet Environmental Quality Standards (and where necessary oil interceptors, silt traps and Sustainable Drainage Systems will be included)
- New development will not significantly alter groundwater flows and that the hydrological regime of the Oxford Meadows SAC is maintained in terms of water quantity and quality
- Run-off rates of surface water from the development will be maintained at Greenfield rates.
- 2.2 The Cherwell and West Oxfordshire Strategic Flood Risk Assessment (SFRA) identifies and maps flood risk from all sources at a borough-wide scale as well as providing guidance on producing site specific FRAs. Relevant information from the SFRA has been referenced throughout this Flood Risk Assessment report.



3 CONSULTATION

- 3.1 The Flood Risk Assessment has been produced in consultation with the Sustainable Places Team at the Environment Agency. The Environment Agency advised that for sites located within Flood Zone 1 greenfield run-off rates need to be maintained post development. Where possible, greenfield rates should be improved (i.e. through the use of soakaways).
- 3.2 The site is not located within an Internal Drainage Board (IDB) District.
- 3.3 The public sewer network within the vicinity of the site is operated by Thames Water. The sewer network within the vicinity of the site is discussed within Section 8 of this report.
- 3.4 A pre-development enquiry has been undertaken as part of the preparation of the Flood Risk Assessment. Thames Water have provided a Sewer Impact Study which is included as Appendix A and is described as follows:
 - The hydraulic model indicates that the foul network does not have available capacity downstream of the proposed connection manhole to accept the proposed development flows.
 - Improvements to the existing foul network are required to enable the proposed connection to sewer network. The proposed indicative option resolves the modelled increase in flooding and surcharge on the sewer network.
 - The hydraulic model indicates that there would be an insignificant increase in network surcharge and flooding during wet weather events in inclusion of the additional development flows. Therefore, improvements to the surface water network system are not required.
 - An updated foul water impact study is currently being undertaken.
- 3.5 The site is within the administrative boundary of Cherwell District Council. The Lead Local Flood Authority is Oxfordshire County Council. Oxfordshire County Councils Draft Local Flood Risk Management Strategy is currently open for consultation between 30th June 2014 and 19th September 2014.



4 SITE DESCRIPTION

Site Description

- 4.1 The site is located off Green Lane, Chesterton approximately 2.5 km to the southwest of Bicester town centre at National Grid Reference SP 55761 21449. It is rectangular in shape, occupying an area of approximately 2.79 hectares. A site location plan is provided in Figure 1.
- 4.2 The majority of the site is currently utilised as arable farm land, however, there are several sheds and a gravel area to the north of the site.
- 4.3 Vehicular and pedestrian access to the site is currently gained via the single track road which forms the north western boundary.

Surrounding Land Uses

- 4.4 The site is situated within an area dominated by agricultural and residential land uses. The site is bound to the north by allotments to the northeast by residential properties to the south west by agricultural land and to the north west by a single track road beyond which lies Bicester Hotel, Golf and Spa.
- 4.5 The site is not situated within or in close proximity to either a Special Area of Conservation (SAC) or Special Protection Area (SPA).

Topography

- 4.6 A topographic survey has been undertaken by RPS (Drainage Ref. JKK8123_1, Dated 21st March 2014) on the site and is included in Appendix B. The site generally slopes gently downwards in a south easterly direction from a topographic high point of approximately 78.38 m AOD in the northern corner to a topographic low point of approximately 75.00 m AOD in the southern corner.
- 4.7 The topographic survey identifies that levels along the single track road which form the north western boundary of generally fall from north to south with levels at the northern end of the site at approximately 78.83 m AOD and levels at the southern end at approximately 78.03 m AOD. The levels on the part of the single track road close to the northern boundary of the site are generally up to 0.5 m higher than on the site.
- 4.8 Reference to OS Mapping contours identifies that site is located within a wider area where levels are generally sloping downwards in a south easterly direction. Ground to the north west of the site is generally higher than the site and ground to the south east of the site is generally lower.



5 PROPOSED DEVELOPMENT

- 5.1 This planning application seeks outline planning approval with means of access for consideration (layout, scale, appearance and landscaping reserved for subsequent approval) for the erection of up to 45 dwellings served via a new vehicular and pedestrian access; public open space and associated earthworks to facilitate surface water drainage; and all other ancillary and enabling works.
- 5.2 The proposed layout is included at Appendix C.
- 5.3 Vehicular and pedestrian access will be provided via a newly constructed access road which will lead off the single track road located to the north west of the site.
- 5.4 Finished floor levels for the proposed buildings will be raised slightly above existing site levels.
- 5.5 The proposed area of hardstanding following development of the site will comprise approximately 1.03 Ha and the remaining area will be soft landscaping and public open space.
- 5.6 The proposed use of the site is classified as **M**ore Vulnerableqwithin the NPPF.
- 5.7 An indicative drainage layout has been designed for the site. It is anticipated that surface water runoff will pass to a surface water drain situated within The Woodlands to the south of the site. The acceptable discharge rate to the existing mains sewer will need to be agreed with Thames Water in consultation with the Environment Agency. However, based on the existing greenfield nature of the site, greenfield rates will need to be maintained post development.
- 5.8 The potential to provide surface water attenuation, including the use of SuDS, has been considered as part of the preliminary design process (see Section 10. Surface Water Management).



6 HYDROLOGICAL SETTING

Nearby Watercourses

- 6.1 Reference to Ordnance Survey Mapping indicates that the nearest surface water feature is Gagle Brook which is situated approximately 350 m to the east, beyond Chesterton town centre. The brook is indicated to flow to the south, ultimately discharging to the River Ray approximately 4.6 km from the site.
- 6.2 A total of thirteen ponds are shown to be located within the grounds of the Bicester Hotel, Golf and Spa to the north west of the site.
- 6.3 No artificial watercourses / features (e.g. canals, reservoirs) have been identified within 1km of the site.

Flood Risk Classification

- 6.4 The Environment Agencyc indicative floodplain map indicates that the site is located wholly within Flood Zone 1 which is classified as being at a low risk of fluvial flooding (less than 1 in 1000 annual probability). The Environment Agency indicative floodplain map is included as Figure 2.
- 6.5 The Environment Agencyc indicative floodplain map indicates that the nearest floodplain to the site is located approximately 350 m to the east and is associated with Gagle Brook. Reference to Ordnance Survey Mapping indicates that the site is situated at least 75 m AOD whilst Gagle Brook is situated at approximately 70 m AOD, therefore the site is at least 5 m above the identified floodplain.
- 6.6 Reference to the Environment Agency¢ online risk of flooding from surface water map indicates that the proposed site is not at risk of surface water flooding.
- 6.7 The Environment Agency reservoir flooding map indicates that the site is not in an area at risk of inundation from reservoir flooding.
- 6.8 No other sources of flooding have been identified within close proximity to the site.



7 HYDROGEOLOGICAL SETTING

- 7.1 Reference to the British Geological Survey online mapping (1:50,000 scale) indicates that no superficial deposits underlie the site. The underlying bedrock is indicated to consist of the Cornbrash Formation a member of the Great Oolite Group. This is described as poorly bedded, medium- to fine-grained limestone.
- A site investigation was undertaken by RSK between 19th and 20th May during which 8 trial pits, 3 soakaway tests and 6 window sample boreholes were undertaken. The geology within the site is identified as follows:
 - The site is generally underlain by topsoil which is directly underlain by limestone of the Cornbrash Formation;
 - The limestone was identified to extend to depths of between 0.40 m bgl and 1.40 m bgl, achieving a thickness of between 0.30 m and 1.20 m.
 - This was further underlain by an orange brown, clayey, gravelly sand, with subangular to subgrounded gravel, also thought to be part of the Cornbrash Formation. The sand extended to depths of between 0.60 m and 2,29 m bgl.
 - A light grey mottled orange slightly gravelly friable clay was encountered below the sand, from depths of between 0.60 m and 1.50 m bgl, extending to depths of between 1.50 m to 2.80 m bgl.
 - This was further underlain by a stiff grey clay that possibly represents the Forest Marble Formation. This was encountered to the base of all exploratory holes.

Soakaway Testing

- 7.3 The results of the soakaway testing indicate variable infiltration rates. Two soakaways were undertaken in the clays of the Forest Marble Formation at depths of 3.50 m bgl in TP01, located in the south western corner of the site and 2.66 m bgl in TP03, located in the northern area of the site, both of which indicated rising water levels and as such no infiltration was calculated. This is likely to have been caused by groundwater within the Cornbrash Formation emptying into the trial pit during the soakaway test at higher rate than infiltration was occurring. One soakaway undertaken within the limestone of the Cornbrash Formation at 1.08 m bgl in TP06, located in the eastern area of the site, gave an infiltration rate of 1.71x10⁻⁵ m/s.
- 7.4 According to the Environment Agency¢ online Groundwater Vulnerability Mapping, the bedrock consisting of the Cornbrash Formation is classified as a Secondary A Aquifer. Secondary A



Aquifers are permeable layers capable of supporting water supplies at a local rather than strategic scale, and in some cases forming an important source of base flow to rivers.

- 7.5 Soilscapes online mapping describes the underlying soil on the site as, **£**reely draining lime-rich loamy soilsq
- 7.6 Reference to the Environment Agency¢ online groundwater Source Protection Zone maps indicates that the site is not located within a groundwater Source Protection Zone.



8 EXISTING DRAINAGE / WATER MAINS

- 8.1 At present the site is currently undeveloped and therefore there is no formal surface water system draining the site.
- 8.2 Reference to Thames Water plans of public sewers (shown in Appendix D) indicates that a 225 mm diameter surface water sewer and a 150 mm diameter foul water sewer are situated within the Woodlands to the south of the site. Both sewers are indicated to flow southward before diverting eastward along Green Lane.
- 8.3 Reference to water network plans provided by Thames Water indicates that there is a 90mm distribution main located in The Woodlands to the south of the site.



9 FLOOD RISK AND MITIGATION

9.1 The key sources of flooding that could potentially impact the site are discussed below:

Fluvial / Tidal Flooding

- 9.2 The Environment Agencyc indicative floodplain map indicates that the site is located wholly within Flood Zone 1 which is classified as being at a low risk of fluvial flooding (less than 1 in 1000 annual probability). The Environment Agency indicative floodplain map is included as Figure 2.
- 9.3 Given the distance of the nearest floodplain to the site (350 m) and the elevation of the site above the watercourse (approximately 5 m) the risk of fluvial flooding to the site is considered to be low.
- 9.4 The access road included in the proposed development which leads off the single track road, is located within Flood Zone 1 therefore safe access/egress is available for the site.
- 9.5 Given that the site and immediate surrounding area is within Flood Zone 1, the proposed development will not result in any modification to fluvial flood flows nor is there any loss in floodplain storage; therefore floodplain compensation is not required for the proposed development.

Proposed Mitigation

9.6 No mitigation measures are required.

Flooding from sewers

- 9.7 Sewer flooding can occur during periods of heavy rainfall when a sewer becomes blocked or is of inadequate capacity. At present the site is currently undeveloped and therefore there is no formal surface water system draining the site, however there are sewers situated to the south of the site serving the neighbouring residential properties which are detailed in Section 8.
- 9.8 Given the topography of the site and the surrounding area it is likely that in the event of sewer surcharging it is water would be retained within the road by the roadside kerbs, and would flow along the Woodlands to the south and east and away from the site.
- 9.9 The SFRA has taken historical sewer flooding records provided from Thames Water and Anglian Water Services DG5 databases detailing the total number of flood events recorded to have affected both internal and external property over a 10 year period. The number of recorded sewer flooding events provided from the DG5 register is provided on a 5 figure grid reference basis and does not pin-point specific areas. The site is not identified as being within an area where sewer flooding has been recorded.



9.10 The discharge rate to the existing sewer will be agreed with Thames Water to ensure that there is capacity to receive discharge from the site without significantly increasing flood risk.

Proposed Mitigation

9.11 The residential dwellings on site will need to be raised above the road network in order to mitigate the potential for flooding from the onsite drainage network.

Surface water flooding (overland flow)

- 9.12 This can occur during intense rainfall events, when water cannot soak into the ground or enter drainage systems.
- 9.13 Reference to the Environment Agency online risk of flooding from surface water map indicates that the site is not at risk from surface water flooding.
- 9.14 Reference to OS Mapping contours identifies that the site is located within a wider area where levels are generally sloping downwards in a southerly easterly direction. Ground to the north west of the site is generally higher than the site and ground to the south east of the site is generally lower. There is therefore potential for surface water overland flow to migrate onto the site from off-site areas to the north and north west of the site. In such instances, flows would migrate across the site in a south easterly direction following the topographic gradient towards Hazelhurst Road.
- 9.15 Surface water flooding from on-site sources is considered in Section 10 of this report.

Proposed Mitigation

9.16 Floor levels of the buildings on site will be raised a minimum of 150 mm above surrounding ground levels thereby preventing ingress of any overland flows from off-site sources into the buildings on the site.

Groundwater flooding

- 9.17 This can occur in low-lying areas when groundwater levels rise above surface levels, or within underground structures. BGS mapping indicates that the site is underlain by bedrock consisting of the Cornbrash Formation a member of the Great Oolite Group. There is potential for shallow groundwater to exist beneath the site, although it is unlikely to be present in significant quantities. At this stage no site specific information is available for groundwater levels beneath the site.
- 9.18 The SFRA states that, ±No historical flooding records or information were identified for the SW quadrant of Bicester.q
- 9.19 Soilscapes online mapping describes the underlying soil on the site as, **F**reely draining lime-rich loamy soilsq



- 9.20 The proposed buildings on the site do not include basement levels.
- 9.21 The risk of groundwater flooding is considered to be low.

Proposed Mitigation

9.22 No mitigation required

Other Sources

- 9.23 The risk of flooding associated with reservoirs, canals and other artificial structures is considered to be low given the absence of any such features within close proximity of the site.
- 9.24 The Environment Agency¢ indicative Reservoir Flooding map indicates that the site is not in an area at risk of inundation from reservoir flooding.
- 9.25 There will be no increase in flood risk from sources such as water mains, canals or other artificial water bodies as a result of the development.

Proposed Mitigation

9.26 Raising floor levels of the buildings on site a minimum of 150 mm above surrounding ground levels will reduce the risk of ingress of any sewer flows into the buildings on the site.

Event Exceedence and Residual Risk

9.27 The mitigation measures proposed as part of the development scheme are considered appropriate to mitigate against any residual risks or event exceedence scenarios.



10 SURFACE WATER MANAGEMENT

Introduction

- 10.1 At present, the site is undeveloped and therefore, there will be an increase in the amount of hardstanding in the form of roads, residential buildings and driveways. Consultation with the Environment Agency has determined that greenfield run-off rates need to be maintained post development.
- 10.2 The IoH 124 Method has been used to calculate the greenfield run-off rate for the site. The calculation sheet is included at Appendix E. The QBAR greenfield run-off rate has been calculated as 2.14 l/s which is approximately 6.0 l/s/ha for the site.
- 10.3 The proposed development comprises the construction of residential properties. Generally, this type of development is considered to have a design life of 100 years. Therefore, for the purposes of this assessment, taking into account the recommended national precautionary sensitivity ranges for peak rainfall intensity (Table 5 in the NPPF), a 30% increase in peak rainfall intensity has been included as climate change allowance, which caters up to the year 2115.

Consideration of Sustainable Drainage Systems

10.4 The potential for the use of Sustainable Drainage Systems (SuDS) has been considered at this stage.

Swales, detention basins and ponds

10.5 The use of detention basins or ponds within the site is a potential method for surface water attenuation due to the availability of open areas within the proposed development. The conceptual surface water and foul water drainage plan, included in Appendix F, identifies that Attenuation basin 1 (North Pond) will provide a storage volume of 363 m³ with a freeboard of approximately 0.76 m for the 1 in 100 year plus 30% climate change event. Detention basin 2 (South Pond) will provide a storage volume of 232 m³ with a freeboard of approximately 0.56 m for the 1 in 100 year plus 30% climate change event. The ponds have the potential to be used as infiltration basins subject to soakaway tests prior to the detailed drainage design. Micro drainage WinDes calculations are included at Appendix G.

Soakaways

10.6 Reference to BGS mapping indicates that the site is underlain by no superficial deposits. The underlying bedrock is indicated to consist of the Cornbrash Formation which is likely to be of a relatively high permeability. The soils are described as **F**reely draining lime-rich loamy soilsq



10.7 Given the reported geological conditions beneath the site it is considered that soakaways are feasible within the south eastern corner of the site. In-situ testing has determined an infiltration rate of 1.71×10^{-5} m/s within this area of the site. It should be noted that infiltration features are preliminary only and are subject to further localised intrusive ground investigations.

Rainwater Harvesting

10.8 The attenuation benefits provided through the use of rainwater harvesting are considered to be limited, and would only be realised when the tanks were not full.

Green Roofs

10.9 Green roofs are considered unsuitable given the nature of the development.

Porous / Permeable Paving

10.10 The use of porous / permeable paving would be suitable for within the south eastern corner of the site.

Conceptual Surface Water Attenuation Scheme

- 10.11 The proposed surface water attenuation scheme comprises drainage of surface water from the site into surface water attenuation basins. The conceptual surface and foul water drainage scheme is shown in Appendix F. Micro drainage calculation sheets are provided at Appendix G. Final drainage design will be required at the detailed design stage.
- 10.12 The proposed development will be drained via a series of attenuation basins and soakaways.
- 10.13 The western corner of the site will discharge via surface water sewers into an attenuation basin located upon the eastern boundary of the site. The attenuation basin will provide a storage volume of 363 m³ for the 1 in 100 year plus 30 % climate change event. The basin will have a bed level of 74.930 m AOD and a depth of water of 0.5 m. The basin will also include a freeboard of approximately 0.76 m.
- 10.14 Water within the basin will outfall into a further attenuation basin located in the southern corner of the site via a surface water sewer at a rate of 3 l/s determined by a flow control.
- 10.15 The attenuation basin within the southern corner of the site will provide 232 m² of volume for the 1 in 100 year plus 30% climate change event for properties within the south western corner of the site. the basin will have a bed level of 74.25 m AOD and a depth of water of 0.35 m. The basin will also include a freeboard of approximately 0.56 m.
- 10.16 The outflow from the attenuation basin is to be controlled by a hydrobrake. The outflow will be restricted to 5 l/s, therefore providing betterment over the existing greenfield runoff rate (6.0 l/s) and will discharge into Woodlands via a gravity sewer.



- 10.17 Residential dwellings within the south eastern corner of the site are shown to discharge into a series of soakaways. Further soakaway testing will be required within this area of the site at the detailed design stage in order to determine the rate at which discharge will infiltrate into the surrounding strata. The soakaways are described as follows:
 - LAP : 2.4 x 4.0 m x 0.66 m deep;
 - 35/36: 2.4 m x 3.2 m x 0.66 m deep;
 - 37-43: 1.6 m x 3.2 m x 0.66 m deep;
 - 44: 2.4 x 3.6 m x 0.66 m deep; and
 - 45: 2.4 m x 3.6 m x 0.66 m deep.
- 10.18 It should be noted that infiltration features are preliminary only and are subject to further localised intrusive ground investigations.
- 10.19 The road network within the south eastern corner of the site comprises a 400 mm minimum open graded crushed rock permeable sub base.
- 10.20 Car parking areas within the proposed development will feature permeable parking that comprises 80 mm permeable block paving, over a 50 mm laying course which is underlain by a layer of open graded crushed rock.
- 10.21 This provides significant betterment than the existing situation as all events above the QBAR rate will be maintained on site up to the 1 in 100 year plus 30 % allowance for climate change event.

Foul Drainage

10.22 The foul water drainage is likely to comprise one of two options:

Either,

- Gravity drainage to a foul water pumping station at the southern end of the site. Following which foul water is pumped by a rising main into the existing Thames Water foul sewer beneath the A4095 (manhole node 7601). As shown on the drainage layout plan at Appendix F; or
- Gravity drainage into The Woodlands (this water require requisition through an adjacent property).

Event Exceedence

10.23 The proposed indicative surface water drainage concept provides storage up to the 1 in 100 year plus 30% climate change event. In an event exceeding this magnitude, detailed drainage design



will identify mitigation measures to ensure that the resulting above-ground flooding will be confined to temporary shallow flooding of the on-site road network and will not affect the buildings on site or significantly increase flood risk to off-site locations.

10.24 Event exceedence planning will be undertaken as part of the final design process. Suitable mitigation measures will be incorporated into the development to ensure water is retained on-site should surcharging of on-site drains occur during extreme rainfall events.



11 SEQUENTIAL TEST AND EXCEPTION TEST

Sequential Test

- 11.1 The NPPF requires the Local Authority to apply the Sequential Test in consideration of new development. The aim of the Test is to steer new development to areas at the lowest probability of flooding. The proposed use of the site is classified as <u>±</u>nore vulnerableqwithin the NPPF.
- 11.2 More vulnerable developments are deemed appropriate for Flood Zone 1 and therefore the proposed development of the site meets the requirements of the Sequential Test.

The Exception Test

11.3 According to Table 3 of the NPPF, <u>more vulnerableqdevelopments</u> are considered appropriate within Flood Zone 1 without the requirement to apply the Exception Test. Therefore, application of the Exception Test is not required for the proposed development.



12 SUMMARY AND CONCLUSIONS

- 12.1 The aim of the Flood Risk Assessment is to outline the potential for the site to be impacted by flooding, the potential impacts of the development on flooding both onsite and in the vicinity, and the proposed measures which can be incorporated into the development to mitigate the identified risks. The report has been produced in accordance with the guidance detailed in the NPPF. Reference has also been made to the CIRIA SuDS manual (C697), the Strategic Flood Risk Assessment and following consultation with the Environment Agencyc Sustainable Places Team.
- 12.2 The potential flood risks to the site, and the measures proposed to mitigate the identified risks, are summarised in the table below:

	Identified		ed			Residual	
Source of flooding	Risk			Mitigation proposed		risk	
	L	Μ	Н		L	Μ	Η
Fluvial	\checkmark			No mitigation required.	\checkmark		
Tidal	\checkmark			No mitigation required.	\checkmark		
Sewers	\checkmark			Residential dwellings raised above road network.	~		
Surface Water		~		Floor levels of the buildings raised a minimum of 150mm above surrounding ground levels.	~		
Groundwater	\checkmark			No mitigation required	~		
Other Sources (e.g. reservoirs, water mains)	~			Raise floor levels of the buildings onsite a minimum of 150mm above surrounding ground levels.	~		

- 12.3 The site is located with the Environment Agency Flood Zone 1, therefore is considered to have a low risk of fluvial flooding.
- 12.4 Based on the site plocation within Flood Zone 1, the site meets the requirements of the Sequential Test incorporated within the NPPF.
- 12.5 The conceptual foul and surface water drainage plan, described in Section 10, will restrict surface water run-off from the site to 5 l/s before discharging into an existing Thames Water surface water sewer. Attenuation is provided in the form of attenuation basins and soakaways. maintain



greenfield run-of rates for the site through a series of gravity sewers. Attenuation is provided in the form of 2 No. Attenuation basins and soakaways.

12.6 Overall, it has been demonstrated that the development would be safe, without increasing flood risk elsewhere, and that a positive reduction in flood risk would be achieved through the proposed surface water management.

Figure 1

SITE LOCATION PLAN





Figure 2

ENVIRONMENT AGENCY FLOOD MAP





Appendix A

THAMES WATER SEWER IMPACT STUDY





SEWER IMPACT STUDY

X4503 – 793

SMG 1651

PROPOSED CONNECTION AT GREEN LANE, BICESTER

FOUL AND SURFACE WATER SYSTEM

V2.0 April 2015

Prepared by:

Checked by: Reviewed by: Approved by: Prashanth Krishnamoorthy Umesha Halekote Graham Moralee Mike Carroll

Network & Process Modelling Group Thames Water Utilities Ltd Power House, Island Road Reading, Berkshire RG2 0RP



Contents

1.0	Introduction	3
2.0	Background	3
3.0	Existing Sewerage System and Treatment Works	4
4.0	Thames Water Drainage Requirements	4
5.0	Sewer Impact Assessment	4
5.1	Foul Sewers	5
5.	5.1.1 Assessment of Existing Catchment	5
5.	5.1.2 Assessment of Development Catchment	5
5.	5.1.3 Foul Water System Improvement Works	5
5.2	Surface Water Sewers	6
5.2	5.2.1 Assessment of Existing Catchment	6
5.2	5.2.2 Assessment of Development Catchment	6
5.2	5.2.3 Surface Water System Improvement Works	6
6.0	Risks and Issues	6
7.0	Conclusions	6

Appendices

Α	Site	Plan
A	Site	Plan

- В
- Plan Showing Local Sewers Connections and Improvements Option C

1.0 Introduction

The following report was commissioned by Thames Water's Developer Services to investigate the capacity within the existing foul and surface water network and to ascertain the impact of a proposed new connection on the foul and surface water network at Green Lane, Bicester.

The scope of the study is to undertake a preliminary desktop study based upon an existing hydraulic model.

The scope of the study includes:

- Carry out a manhole survey, pumping station survey and a short-term flow survey
- Build a new hydraulic model of the surface water network
- Model enhancement with manhole and pumping station survey data
- Verify the model using flow survey data
- Check the current performance of the existing network during both dry and wet weather events
- Add development flows to the model and check the impact of additional flow to the sewer network during both dry and wet weather events
- Suggest possible options to allow flows to be accepted into the existing network with no
 detriment to existing levels of service. It should be noted that these options are indicative
 and are likely to be subject to change based on site conditions, other utilities and
 requirements of third parties. However, the options indicate the feasibility of connecting
 the site to the sewerage system and the ability of the sewerage system to accept the
 development.

2.0 Background

The proposed new development is on a Greenfield site and the Developer proposes to accommodate 45 new housing units. The development area is situated in the village of Chesterton, locatd to the southwest of Bicester.

The development area is bounded by Green Lane to the south and the A4095 to the west.

The foul flow from the development area has been calculated, using the latest Thames Water guidelines, as an average gravity flow of 2.06l/s. The surface water flow from the development area has been provided by the Developer as a peak flow of 6l/s.

The preferred connection manholes have been identified as SP55218205 for the foul flows and SP55218203 for the surface water flows, both located located to the south of the development site. A plan showing the location of the development and connection point is provided in Appendix A.

3.0 Existing Sewerage System and Treatment Works

The area in the vicinity of the development site is served by a separate foul and surface water sewer network.

From the development site, foul flows in the development area gravitate in a south-easterly direction towards Audley House Sewage Pumping Station (SPS), from where they are pumped to the gravity network draining to Fire Station (Chesterton) SPS.

From here, flows are lifted directly to Bicester Sewage Treatment Works (STW), located approximately 2km downstream of the development site.

Foul flows travel through sewers ranging from 150mm diameter to 250mm diameter sewer from the development area towards Bicester STW.

Surface water flows in the development area gravitate in a south-easterly direction along Green Lane before discharging to Gagle Brook.

Surface water flows travel through sewers ranging from 150mm diameter to 600mm diameter sewer from the development area towards Gagle Brook.

The local foul and surface water sewers are shown in the plan provided in Appendix B.

4.0 Thames Water Drainage Requirements

It is necessary to provide separate foul and surface water drainage systems and to ensure that each system is connected to an appropriate drainage system.

This study considers the impact of both foul and surface water flows discharging from the new development.

As the Developer proposes to connect both foul and surface water flows into the existing network, this report covers the impact of both the foul and surface water flows from the proposed development on the existing sewer networks adjacent to and downstream of the proposed development.

Additional development flows should not cause new or additional flood risk to the existing system in either dry or wet weather.

5.0 Sewer Impact Assessment

Assessment of the hydraulic loading of the foul and surface water network was carried out by means of an existing hydraulic model of the foul network and a newly built hydraulic model of the surface water network.

The model was enhanced with the results of a manhole and pumping station survey carried out in the study area. A flow survey was also completed to enable a verification exercise to be completed, and to confirm the current flows in the sewer network.

The proposed new development area and connection point details were added to the model and the assessment completed to identify the impact of the proposed new development.

The analysis of the catchment indicates that the foul and surface water networks are responsive to rainfall, with flooding being a risk in the catchment for extreme events.

The impact of the proposed foul and surface water connection was assessed based on the design flows detailed in Section 2.0.

5.1 Foul Sewers

5.1.1 Assessment of Existing Catchment

The hydraulic model indicates that the existing foul network does not have available capacity downstream of the proposed connection manhole. The hydraulic model has been used to assess wet weather scenarios of various durations. During these wet weather events, the hydraulic model predicts network surcharge and flooding to occur.

5.1.2 Assessment of Development Catchment

An analysis has been completed to assess the impact of connecting the flows from the development into the public sewer. An allowance of 2.06l/s average gravity flow was used to represent the development.

Table 1: Proposed Development Connection Details

Connection	Manhole	Diameter of Outgoing Sewer		
Development Site	SP55218205	150mm		

5.1.3 Foul Water System Improvement Works

The hydraulic model indicates that the foul network does not have available capacity downstream of the proposed connection manhole to accept the proposed development flows. On inclusion of the additional flows from the development site, an increase in the predicted volume of flooding and surcharge on the downstream sewer network is predicted to occur.

One indicative option has been developed to prevent the detrimental impact on the existing system, and allow the development site to connect to the existing sewer network. This option has been developed during a preliminary desktop investigation, using the hydraulic model only. The solution identified is intended to indicate the likely extent and magnitude and the network enhancement required to mitigate the predicted detriment and thus inform negotiations between the Developer and Thames Water over the feasibility and likely cost of the connection. A detailed design is required to confirm the size, location and performance of the indicative option before proceeding with any construction. Detailed design may also indicate alternative options.

Option – On-line Storage (See Appendix C1 for Plan)

- Connect development flows to manhole SP55218205.
- Provide approximately 93m³ on-line storage between manholes SP56210205 and SP56211202 in Green Lane by upsizing three lengths of existing 150mm diameter pipe to 900mm diameter, for a total length of 147m.
5.2 Surface Water Sewers

5.2.1 Assessment of Existing Catchment

The hydraulic model indicates that the existing surface water network does not have available capacity downstream of the proposed connection manhole. The hydraulic model has been used to assess wet weather scenarios of various durations. During these wet weather events, the hydraulic model predicts network surcharge and flooding to occur.

5.2.2 Assessment of Development Catchment

An analysis has been completed to assess the impact of connecting the surface water flows from the development into the surface water sewer. An allowance of 6l/s gravity flow was used to represent the development.

Table 2: Proposed Development Connection Details

Connection Manhole		Diameter of Outgoing Sewer	
Development Site	SP55218203	225mm	

5.2.3 Surface Water System Improvement Works

The hydraulic model indicates that the surface water network does not have available capacity downstream of the proposed connection manhole to accept the proposed development flows. However, the hydraulic model predicts an insignificant increase in network surcharge and flooding on inclusion of the additional development flows.

Therefore, improvements to the surface water network system are not required.

6.0 Risks and Issues

Current understanding of the hydrology of urban environments recognises that the effective pervious area (the pervious proportion of the catchment that produces surface runoff and generates flow in the sewer) is likely to exhibit a dynamic nature in relation to increasing volumes of rainfall, i.e. the more rainfall the greater the resulting effective pervious area is likely to be.

Whilst the hydrological models deployed attempt to simulate this dynamic behaviour, there is a risk that the model, when extrapolated to storm events, will not accurately predict the flows in the system. Therefore, any potential error is multiplied when the system is tested against a large design storm.

7.0 Conclusions

The desktop study has successfully investigated and identified the implications of the proposed new development on a Greenfield site at Green Lane, Bicester to the existing foul and surface water networks.

The hydraulic model indicates that the foul network does not have available capacity downstream of the proposed connection manhole to accept the proposed development flows.

Improvements to the existing foul network are required to enable the proposed connection to the sewer network, without causing any detriment to the level of service provided. The proposed indicative option resolves the modelled increase in flooding and surcharge on the sewer network.

The hydraulic model indicates that there would be an insignificant increase in network surcharge and flooding during wet weather events in inclusion of the additional development flows. Therefore, improvements to the surface water network system are not required.

The issues highlighted and discussed throughout this report are recommendations to Thames Water Utilities and may be altered/added to based upon local operational knowledge of the system.

Network & Process Modelling Group



Green Lane, Bicester SMG1651 – April 2015 Issue: v2.0

Page 8 of 10

Network & Process Modelling Group



Appendix B – Local Sewers

Green Lane, Bicester SMG1651 – April 2015 Issue: v2.0

Page 9 of 10

Network & Process Modelling Group



Appendix C – Connections and Improvements – Option

Green Lane, Bicester SMG1651 – April 2015 Issue: v2.0

Page 10 of 10

Appendix B

TOPOGRAPHIC SURVEY





221600N

_	SURVEY	KFY		
	SURVEY Real Bases Real	CEV when the same stars same star	\$	No. 400,07 400,07 170,07 100,0700,07
221500M	Independence Indepndence Indepndence Indepndence Indepndence Indep	NO DANNAGE BYORKUT OKLY MOD SHOULD BE DEDC SPECES HAVE B UT SHOULD BE CONTROL WOULD A BEAL THE OF WOULD A REAL THE OF WOULD A	ON HAS BEEN MEASU COMPARED BY SPECIALSS ED DEINFELD AS AC ED DY SPECIALSS ED DEINFELD AS AC DEINFELD AS AC DEIN	RED FROM SURFACE AUSTS FORMOL. COUNTELY AS FORMOL. D ON STATION D4 EEN USED. Level 78.753 78.567 77.984 75.910
221400M	DS	455834 508	221393.631	76.357
221300M	Rev Descriptor	LAND AT GI CHESTERT OXFORDS	vnt sode of the dansky verse of the dansky verse MK14 60P reproduction F2+44 REEN LANE RRE, HICAL SUR	By Out Dame 100 100 100 100 100 100 100 100 100 100 100 100

Drawn By

Drawing Number JKK8123 _1

Date Created 21st March 2 Checked by ST

Rev A

-13 400 1600 1666 2660 7m 8m 9m 10m 400m 9m 500m

Appendix C

PROPOSED LAYOUT



Appendix D

THAMES WATER SEWER PLANS





Thames Water Property Searches 12Vastern Road READING RG1 8DB

Search address supplied

1 Banks Furlong Chesterton Bicester OX26 1UG

Your reference

RCEF29420

Our reference

ALS/ALS Standard/2014_2726117

Search date

28 March 2014

You are now able to order your Asset Location Search requests online by visiting www.thameswater-propertysearches.co.uk



Thames Water Utilities Ltd, Property Searches, PO Box 3189, Slough SL1 4W, DX 151280 Slough 13 T0845 070 9148Esearches@thameswater.co.uk I www.thameswater-propertysearches.co.uk



Search address supplied: 1, Banks Furlong, Chesterton, Bicester, OX26 1UG

Dear Sir / Madam

An Asset Location Search is recommended when undertaking a site development. It is essential to obtain information on the size and location of clean water and sewerage assets to safeguard against expensive damage and allow cost-effective service design.

The following records were searched in compiling this report: - the map of public sewers & the map of waterworks. Thames Water Utilities Ltd (TWUL) holds all of these.

This searchprovides maps showing the position, size of Thames Water assets close to the proposed development and also manhole cover and invert levels, where available.

Please note that none of the charges made for this report relate to the provision of Ordnance Survey mapping information. The replies contained in this letter are given following inspection of the public service records available to this company. No responsibility can be accepted for any error or omission in the replies.

You should be aware that the information contained on these plans is current only on the day that the plans are issued. The plans should only be used for the duration of the work that is being carried out at the present time. Under no circumstances should this data be copied or transmitted to parties other than those for whom the current work is being carried out.

Thames Water do update these service plans on a regular basis and failure to observe the above conditions could lead to damage arising to new or diverted services at a later date.

Contact Us

If you have any further queries regarding this enquiry please feel free to contact a member of the team on 0845 070 9148, or use the address below:

Thames Water Utilities Ltd Property Searches PO Box 3189 Slough SL1 4WW

Email: <u>searches@thameswater.co.uk</u> Web: <u>www.thameswater-propertysearches.co.uk</u>

<u>Thames Water Utilities Ltd</u>, Property Searches, PO Box 3189, Slough SL1 4W, DX 151280 Slough 13 T0845 070 9148<u>Esearches@thameswater.co.uk</u> I <u>www.thameswater-propertysearches.co.uk</u>



Waste Water Services

Please provide a copy extract from the public sewer map.

Enclosed is a map showing the approximate lines of our sewers. Our plans do not show sewer connections from individual properties or any sewers not owned by Thames Water unless specifically annotated otherwise. Records such as "private" pipework are in some cases available from the Building Control Department of the relevant Local Authority.

Where the Local Authority does not hold such plans it might be advisable to consult the property deeds for the site or contact neighbouring landowners.

This report relates only to sewerage apparatus of Thames Water Utilities Ltd, it does not disclose details of cables and or communications equipment that may be running through or around such apparatus.

The sewer level information contained in this response represents all of the level data available in our existing records. Should you require any further Information, please refer to the relevant section within the 'Further Contacts' page found later in this document.

For your guidance:

- The Company is not generally responsible for rivers, watercourses, ponds, culverts or highway drains. If any of these are shown on the copy extract they are shown for information only.
- Any private sewers or lateral drains which are indicated on the extract of the public sewer map as being subject to an agreement under Section 104 of the Water Industry Act 1991 are not an 'as constructed' record. It is recommended these details be checked with the developer.

Clean Water Services

Please provide a copy extract from the public water main map.

Enclosed is a map showing the approximate positions of our water mains and associated apparatus. Please note that records are not kept of the positions of individual domestic supplies.

For your information, there will be a pressure of at least 10m head at the outside stop valve. If you would like to know the static pressure, please contact our Customer Centre on 0845 920 0800. The Customer Centre can also arrange for a full flow and



pressure test to be carried out for a fee.

For your guidance:

- Assets other than vested water mains may be shown on the plan, for information only.
- If an extract of the public water main record is enclosed, this will show known public water mains in the vicinity of the property. It should be possible to estimate the likely length and route of any private water supply pipe connecting the property to the public water network.

Payment for this Search

A charge will be added to your suppliers account.



Further contacts:

Waste Water queries

Should you require verification of the invert levels of public sewers, by site measurement, you will need to approach the relevant Thames Water Area Network Office for permission to lift the appropriate covers. This permission will usually involve you completing a TWOSA form. For further information please contact our Customer Centre on Tel: 0845 920 0800. Alternatively, a survey can be arranged, for a fee, through our Customer Centre on the above number.

If you have any questions regarding sewer connections, budget estimates, diversions, building over issues or any other questions regarding operational issues please direct them to our service desk. Which can be contacted by writing to:

Developer Services (Waste Water) Thames Water Clearwater Court Vastern Road Reading RG1 8DB

Tel: 0845 850 2777 Email: developer.services@thameswater.co.uk

Clean Water queries

Should you require any advice concerning clean water operational issues or clean water connections, please contact:

Developer Services (Clean Water) Thames Water Clearwater Court Vastern Road Reading RG1 8DB

Tel: 0845 850 2777 Email: developer.services@thameswater.co.uk



Based on the Ordnance Survey Map with the Sanction of the controller of H.M. Stationery Office, License no. 100019345 Crown Copyright Reserved.

<u>Thames Water Utilities Ltd</u>, Property Searches, PO Box 3189, Slough SL1 4W, DX 151280 Slough 13 T 0845 070 9148 E <u>searches@thameswater.co.uk</u> I <u>www.thameswater-propertysearches.co.uk</u> NB. Levels quoted in metres Ordnance Newlyn Datum. The value -9999.00 indicates that no survey information is available

Manhole Reference	Manhole Cover Level	Manhole Invert Level			
8204	74.73	73.16			
8206	74.73	73.55			
The position of the apparatus shown on this plan is given without obligation and warranty, and the accuracy cannot be guaranteed. Service pipes are not shown but their presence should be anticipated. No liability of any kind whatsoever is accepted by Thames Water for any error or omission. The actual position of mains and services must be verified and established on site before any works are undertaken.					





Sewer Fittings

A feature in a sewer that does not affect the flow in the pipe. Example: a vent is a fitting as the function of a vent is to release excess gas.

- Air Valve
- Fitting
 Meter

Meter

X

4

Ξ

 \sim

<u>\</u>-/

O Vent Column

Operational Controls

A feature in a sewer that changes or diverts the flow in the sewer. Example: A hydrobrake limits the flow passing downstream.

Control Valve Drop Pipe Ancillary

Outfall

Inlet

Undefined End

member of Property Insight on 0845 070 9148.

Weir

End Items

End symbols appear at the start or end of a sewer pipe. Examples: an Undefined End at the start of a sewer indicates that Thames Water has no knowledge of the position of the sewer upstream of that symbol, Outfall on a surface water sewer indicates that the pipe discharges into a stream or river.

6) The text appearing alongside a sewer line indicates the internal diameter of the pipe in milimetres. Text next to a manhole indicates the manhole

reference number and should not be taken as a measurement. If you are

unsure about any text or symbology present on the plan, please contact a

Other Symbols

Symbols used on maps which do not fall under other general categories

- ▲ / ▲ Public/Private Pumping Station
- * Change of characteristic indicator (C.O.C.I.)
- Ø Invert Level
- Summit

Areas

Lines denoting areas of underground surveys, etc.

Agreement
Operational Site
Chamber
Tunnel
Conduit Bridge

Other Sewer Types (Not Operated or Maintained by Thames Water)



Notes:

1) All levels associated with the plans are to Ordnance Datum Newlyn.

2) All measurements on the plans are metric.

- Arrows (on gravity fed sewers) or flecks (on rising mains) indicate direction of flow.
- Most private pipes are not shown on our plans, as in the past, this information has not been recorded.
- 5) 'na' or '0' on a manhole level indicates that data is unavailable.

Thames Water Utilities Ltd, Property Searches, PO Box 3189, Slough SL1 4W, DX 151280 Slough 13 T 0845 070 9148 E searches@thameswater.co.uk I www.thameswater-propertysearches.co.uk



Based on the Ordnance Survey Map with the Sanction of the controller of H.M. Stationery Office, License no. 100019345 Crown Copyright Reserved.



ALS Water Map Key

Water Pipes (Operated & Maintained by Thames Water)

- Distribution Main: The most common pipe shown on water maps.
 With few exceptions, domestic connections are only made to distribution mains.
- Trunk Main: A main carrying water from a source of supply to a treatment plant or reservoir, or from one treatment plant or reservoir to another. Also a main transferring water in bulk to smaller water mains used for supplying individual customers.
- **Supply Main:** A supply main indicates that the water main is used as a supply for a single property or group of properties.
- FIRE Fire Main: Where a pipe is used as a fire supply, the word FIRE will be displayed along the pipe.
- **Metered Pipe:** A metered main indicates that the pipe in question supplies water for a single property or group of properties and that quantity of water passing through the pipe is metered even though there may be no meter symbol shown.
 - Transmission Tunnel: A very large diameter water pipe. Most tunnels are buried very deep underground. These pipes are not expected to affect the structural integrity of buildings shown on the map provided.
 - **Proposed Main:** A main that is still in the planning stages or in the process of being laid. More details of the proposed main and its reference number are generally included near the main.

PIPE DIAMETER	DEPTH BELOW GROUND			
Up to 300mm (12")	900mm (3')			
300mm - 600mm (12" - 24")	1100mm (3' 8")			
600mm and bigger (24" plus)	1200mm (4')			



Meters

End Items

 $-\bigcirc$

Symbol indicating what happens at the end of ^L a water main. Blank Flange

- Capped End
- Undefined End

Emptying Pit

- Manifold

—— Fire Supply

Operational Sites



Other Symbols

Data Logger

Other Water Pipes (Not Operated or Maintained by Thames Water)

 Other Water Company Main: Occasionally other water company water pipes may overlap the border of our clean water coverage area. These mains are denoted in purple and in most cases have the owner of the pipe displayed along them.

Private Main: Indiates that the water main in question is not owned by Thames Water. These mains normally have text associated with them indicating the diameter and owner of the pipe.

Thames Water Utilities Ltd, Property Searches, PO Box 3189, Slough SL1 4W, DX 151280 Slough 13 T 0845 070 9148 E searches@thameswater.co.uk | www.thameswater-propertysearches.co.uk

Terms and Conditions

All sales are made in accordance with Thames Water Utilities Limited (TWUL) standard terms and conditions unless previously agreed in writing.

- 1. All goods remain in the property of Thames Water Utilities Ltd until full payment is received.
- 2. Provision of service will be in accordance with all legal requirements and published TWUL policies.
- 3. All invoices are strictly due for payment 14 days from due date of the invoice. Any other terms must be accepted/agreed in writing prior to provision of goods or service, or will be held to be invalid.
- 4. Thames Water does not accept post-dated cheques-any cheques received will be processed for payment on date of receipt.
- 5. In case of dispute TWUL's terms and conditions shall apply.
- Penalty interest may be invoked by TWUL in the event of unjustifiable payment delay. Interest charges will be in line with UK Statute Law 'The Late Payment of Commercial Debts (Interest) Act 1998'.
- 7. Interest will be charged in line with current Court Interest Charges, if legal action is taken.
- 8. A charge may be made at the discretion of the company for increased administration costs.

A copy of Thames Water's standard terms and conditions are available from the Commercial Billing Team (cashoperations@thameswater.co.uk).

We publish several Codes of Practice including a guaranteed standards scheme. You can obtain copies of these leaflets by calling us on 0845 9200 800.

If you are unhappy with our service you can speak to your original goods or customer service provider. If you are not satisfied with the response, your complaint will be reviewed by the Customer Services Director. You can write to him at: Thames Water Utilities Ltd. PO Box 492, Swindon, SN38 8TU.

If the Goods or Services covered by this invoice falls under the regulation of the 1991 Water Industry Act, and you remain dissatisfied you can refer your complaint to Consumer Council for Water on 0121 345 1000 or write to them at Consumer Council for Water, 1st Floor, Victoria Square House, Victoria Square, Birmingham, B2 4AJ.

Credit Card	BACS Payment	Telephone Banking	Cheque
Call 0845 070 9148 quoting your invoice number starting CBA or ADS.	Account number 90478703 Sort code 60-00-01 A remittance advice must be sent to: Thames Water Utilities Ltd., PO Box 3189, Slough SL1 4WW. or email ps.billing@thameswater. co.uk	By calling your bank and quoting: Account number 90478703 Sort code 60-00-01 and your invoice number	Made payable to 'Thames Water Utilities Ltd' Write your Thames Water account number on the back. Send to: Thames Water Utilities Ltd., PO Box 3189, Slough SL1 4WW or by DX to 151280 Slough 13

Ways to pay your bill

Thames Water Utilities Ltd Registered in England & Wales No. 2366661 Registered Office Clearwater Court, Vastern Rd, Reading, Berks, RG1 8DB.



Search Code

IMPORTANT CONSUMER PROTECTION INFORMATION

This search has been produced by Thames Water Property Searches, Clearwater Court, Vastern Road, Reading RG1 8DB, which is registered with the Property Codes Compliance Board (PCCB) as a subscriber to the Search Code. The PCCB independently monitors how registered search firms maintain compliance with the Code.

The Search Code:

- provides protection for homebuyers, sellers, estate agents, conveyancers and mortgage lenders who
 rely on the information included in property search reports undertaken by subscribers on residential
 and commercial property within the United Kingdom
- sets out minimum standards which firms compiling and selling search reports have to meet
- promotes the best practise and quality standards within the industry for the benefit of consumers and property professionals
- enables consumers and property professionals to have confidence in firms which subscribe to the code, their products and services.

By giving you this information, the search firm is confirming that they keep to the principles of the Code. This provides important protection for you.

The Code's core principles

Firms which subscribe to the Search Code will:

- display the Search Code logo prominently on their search reports
- act with integrity and carry out work with due skill, care and diligence
- at all times maintain adequate and appropriate insurance to protect consumers
- conduct business in an honest, fair and professional manner
- handle complaints speedily and fairly
- ensure that products and services comply with industry registration rules and standards and relevant laws
- monitor their compliance with the Code

Complaints

If you have a query or complaint about your search, you should raise it directly with the search firm, and if appropriate ask for any complaint to be considered under their formal internal complaints procedure. If you remain dissatisfied with the firm's final response, after your complaint has been formally considered, or if the firm has exceeded the response timescales, you may refer your complaint for consideration under The Property Ombudsman scheme (TPOs). The Ombudsman can award compensation of up to £5,000 to you if he finds that you have suffered actual loss as a result of your search provider failing to keep to the Code.

Please note that all queries or complaints regarding your search should be directed to your search provider in the first instance, not to TPOs or to the PCCB.

TPOs Contact Details

The Property Ombudsman scheme Milford House 43-55 Milford Street Salisbury Wiltshire SP1 2BP Tel: 01722 333306 Fax: 01722 332296 Email: <u>admin@tpos.co.uk</u>

You can get more information about the PCCB from www.propertycodes.org.uk

PLEASE ASK YOUR SEARCH PROVIDER IF YOU WOULD LIKE A COPY OF THE SEARCH CODE

Appendix E

IOH 124 METHOD GREENFIELD CALCULATIONS



CALCULATION	6	Sheet No:	1 of 1	RPS
Project:	Green Lane	Ref:	RCEF29420	
Calc Details:	IOH124, Greenfield Run-off Calculation			Unit 12, Watersedge Business Park, Modwen Road, Salford Quays, M5 3EZ
Prepared by:	MB	Date:	01/04/2014	T +44 (0)161 874 3737 F +44 (0)161 877 3959

The IOH124 method is the preferred approach for calculating Greenfield run-off. This should however be compared to the ADAS method on steep sites.

Calculation NB This spreadsheet considers the run-off from small rural catchments where the catchment area is less than 50Ha, the QBAR calc is completed for 50Ha and scaled down accordingly AREA 0.01 km² 1 Ha SAAR 656 mm Take from FEH CD SOIL 0.335 Winter Rain Acceptance Potential (FSR, Fig I.4.18) or refer to: http://www.landis.org.uk/soilscapes/ Soil Class % of catchment Very High S1 High S2 50% Moderate S3 50% Low S4 Very Low S5 QBAR 0.00108 AREA^{0.89} SAAR^{1.17} SOIL^{2.17} QBAR 0.002 m³/s 2.15 l/s Region 6 Peak Run-off Return Period Flow (m³/s) Flow (l/s) 0.002 1.9 2yr 5yr 0.003 2.7 0.003 10yr 3.5 30yr 0.005 4.9 50yr 0.006 5.6 100yr 0.007 6.8 100yr + 20% 0.008 8.2 100yr + 30% 0.009 8.9 500yr 0.010 9.6 1000yr 0.011 11.1 Hydrological areas **Growth Factors** Hydrometric Area **Return Period** 2 5 10 30 50 100 500 1000 0.9 1.2 1.45 1.88 2.12 2.48 3.25 3.63 1 3.45 2 0.91 1.11 1.42 1.9 2.17 2.63 3.85 3 1.25 1.75 2.73 3.04 0.94 1.45 1.9 2.08 4 0.89 1.23 1.49 1.95 2.2 2.57 3.62 4.16 5 0.89 1.29 1.65 2.39 2.83 3.56 5.02 5.76

Ireland © RPS Planning & Development - Milton Keynes

6

7

8

9

10

0.88

0.88

0.88

0.93

0.93

0.95

1.28

1.28

1.23

1.21

1.19

1.2

1.62

1.62

1.49

1.42

1.38

1.37

2.26

2.26

1.91

1.77

1.7

1.64

2.62

2.62

2.12

1.94

1.85

1.77

3.19

3.19

2.42

2.18

2.08

1.96

4.49

4.49

3.41

2.86

2.73

2.4

5.16

5.16

3.91

3.19

3.04

2.6

Appendix F

CONCEPTUAL SURFACE WATER ATTENUATION PLAN





13. Covers and frames shall be set to finished ground levels and falls. Cover levels shown are indicative only. 14. Inspection & access chamber covers and frames shall be

- provided by the proprietary manufacturer. 15. Locations of rainwater pipes & soil pipes are indicative only, refer to the relevant architects drawings.
- 16. All chamber covers located within the access road or parking bays shall be D400 heavy duty.
- 17. Contractor to verify manhole locations, pipe diameters and levels prior to making any connections to existing sewers and drains and confirm findings to the engineer
- 18. The contractor shall maintain all existing foul water flows at all
- 19. Yard gullies to be sealed during construction to prevent blockages and system jetted clean upon completion (maximum jetting pressure of 180bar or 2600psi). 20.For typical construction details, see RPS drawing series
- 21.Refer to architects drawings for clarification of SVP's that vent
- 22.Drainage connections are subject to terms & conditions of Thames Water and shall be undertaken in accordance with
- 23.Contractor is to liaise directly with Thames Water to arrange all necessary inspections of adoptable works & connections to public sewers, & shall allow attendance to site as required.
- 24. All ground investigation and infiltration results shall be reported 25.SuDS design is based on initial investigations undertaken by RSK in May 2015 Contact Ref: 313035.
- 26. This drawing is to be read in accordance with the FRA

CL 75.07

IL 73.70

GENERAL NOTES

- This drawing has been prepared in accordance with the scope of RPS's appointment with its client and is subject to the terms and conditions of that appointment. RPS accepts no liability for any use of this document other than by its client and only for the purposes for which it was prepared and provided.
- 2. If received electronically it is the recipients responsibility to print to correct scale. Only written dimensions should be used.
- 3. All dimensions are in metres unless otherwise stated.
- . This drawing is based on a topographical survey undertaken by:- RPS Planning and Development, Milton Keynes.
- 5. Proposed Layout is based on Site Plan, drawing number LSD129.03.01 undertaken by Life Space Design.
- 6. This drawing should be read in accordance with all relevant scheme drawings and specification.
- All works to be carried out in strict accordance with with 'Specification of Highway Works - Modified and Extended including Oxfordshire County Council's (OCC) supplementary clauses.
- All works with the public highway to be carried out and comply with requirements of DTP "Traffic signs Manual Chapter 8 -Traffic Safety Measures and Signs for Road Works and Temporary Situations".
- Any discrepancies between project specification & OCC requirements to be reported to immediately to the Engineer.

KEY

Appendix G

MICRO DRAINAGE WINDES MODELLING ASSESSMENT

RPS P&D					Page 1		
20 Milton Park	20 Milton Park Land North of Green Lane						
Abingdon	Abingdon Plots 37-43						
Oxfordshire OX14 4SH	Oxfordshire OX14 4SH Trench Soakaways						
Date 24/07/2015 14:56 Designed by JR							
File Plots 37-43 - Trench So	Digiligh						
Causeway	Source	Control 20	14.1.1				
Summary of Results f	or 100 g	year Return	Perio	d (+30%)			
Half Dra	ain Time	: 95 minutes.					
Storm Max	. Max	Max	Max	Status			
Event Leve	l Depth	Infiltration	Volume	beacab			
(m)	(m)	(1/s)	(m³)				
15 min Gummon 75 5		0 1	0 0	O K			
30 min Summer 75.6	22 0.322	0.1	1.1	0 K			
60 min Summer 75.6	60 0.360	0.1	1.2	ОК			
120 min Summer 75.6	64 0.364	0.1	1.2	ОК			
180 min Summer 75.6	51 0.351	0.1	1.2	ОК			
240 min Summer 75.6	33 0.333	0.1	1.1	ОК			
360 min Summer 75.5	98 0.298	0.1	1.0	OK			
400 min Summer 75.5	36 0.236	0.1	0.9	0 K			
720 min Summer 75.5	09 0.209	0.1	0.7	ОК			
960 min Summer 75.4	63 0.163	0.1	0.5	ОК			
1440 min Summer 75.3	97 0.097	0.1	0.3	O K			
2160 min Summer 75.3	51 0.051	0.1	0.2	ОК			
2880 min Summer 75.3	41 0.041	0.1	0.1	OK			
4320 min Summer 75.3	24 0.024	0.1	0.1	0 K			
7200 min Summer 75.3	20 0.020	0.0	0.1	ОК			
8640 min Summer 75.3	17 0.017	0.0	0.0	O K			
10080 min Summer 75.3	15 0.015	0.0	0.0	O K			
15 min Winter 75.5	93 0.293	0.1	1.0	ОК			
Storm	Rain	Flooded Ti	me-Peak				
Event	(mm/hı) Volume	(mins)				
		(m ³)					
15 min Summ	or 100 00	25 0 0	10				
30 min Summ	er 84.22	26 0.0	32				
60 min Summ	er 52.60	52 0.0	60				
120 min Summ	er 31.80	0.0	92				
180 min Summ	er 23.35	53 0.0	126				
240 min Summ	er 18.64 er 12 F/	14 0.0	160 220				
480 min Summ	er 10.79	0.0	∠∠8 296				
600 min Summ	er 9.04	13 0.0	362				
720 min Summ	er 7.82	23 0.0	426				
960 min Summ	er 6.21	9 0.0	548				
1440 min Summ	er 4.49	0.0	780				
2160 min Summ 2880 min Summ	er 3.24 er 2.54	±⊥ U.U 58 ∩ ∩	1104 1462				
4320 min Summ	er 1.84	17 0.0	2200				
5760 min Summ	er 1.46	51 0.0	2920				
7200 min Summ	er 1.21	.7 0.0	3648				
8640 min Summ	er 1.04	18 0.0	4384				
10080 min Summ	er 0.92 er 128 20	43 U.U 85 0.0	5112 19				
	CI IZ0.20		τo				
©1982-2014 XP Solutions							

RPS P&D							Page 2	
20 Milton Pa	ark		Land Nor	th of G	reen Lane	9		
Abingdon			Plots 37	-43			4	
Oxfordshire	OX14 4SH		Trench S	oakaway	S		Micco	
Date 24/07/2015 14:56 Designed by JR								
File Plots 37-43 - Trench So Checked by					Urainage			
Causeway			Source C	ontrol	2014 1 1			
caubeway			bource e	0110101	2011.1.1			
	Summary of Resul	ts fo	or 100 ve	ar Retu	rn Perio	d (+30%)		
		00 10	1 100 70	ar neeu		<u>a (+300)</u>		
	Storm Max Max Max Max Status							
	Event	Level	l Depth I	nfiltrati	on Volume			
		(m)	(m)	(l/s)	(m³)			
	30 min Winter	75.66	5 0.365	0).1 1.2	ОК		
	60 min Winter	75.71	4 0.414	0).1 1.4	ОК		
	120 min Winter	75.71	8 0.418	0	0.1 1.4	ОК		
	180 min Winter	75.70	0 0.400	0	0.1 1.3	O K		
	240 min Winter	75.67	5 0.375	0	1.1 1.3	ОК		
	480 min Winter	75.57	5 0.275	0).1 0.9	OK		
	600 min Winter	75.53	2 0.232	0	0.1 0.8	ОК		
	720 min Winter	75.49	3 0.193	0	0.1 0.6	ОК		
	960 min Winter	75.43	0 0.130	0	0.1 0.4	ОК		
	1440 min Winter	75.35	3 0.053	0	0.1 0.2	ОК		
	2880 min Winter	75.33	0 0.030	0	0.1 0.1	0 K		
	4320 min Winter	75.32	2 0.022	0	0.0 0.1	ОК		
	5760 min Winter	75.31	7 0.017	0	0.0 0.0	O K		
	7200 min Winter	75.31	4 0.014	0	0.0 0.0	ОК		
	8640 min Winter	75.31 75.31		0		OK		
		/5.51	1 0.011	0		0 10		
	Stor	m	Rain	Flooded	Time-Peak			
	Even	t	(mm/hr)	Volume	(mins)			
				(m ³)				
	30 min	Winte	r 84.226	0.0	31			
	60 min	Winte	r 52.662	0.0	60			
	120 min	Winte	r 31.800	0.0	98			
	180 min 240 min	Winte Winte	r 18.644	0.0	⊥36 174			
	360 min	Winte	r 13.543	0.0	248			
	480 min	Winte	r 10.792	0.0	318			
	600 min	Winte	r 9.043	0.0	386			
	720 min	Winte	r 7.823	0.0	448			
	1440 min	Winte	1 0.219	0.0	570			
	2160 min	Winte	r 3.241	0.0	1100			
	2880 min	Winte	r 2.568	0.0	1472			
	4320 min	Winte	r 1.847	0.0	2204			
	5760 min 7200 min	Winte Winte	r 1.461 r 1.217	U.U 0 0	2880			
	8640 min	Winte	r 1.048	0.0	4408			
	10080 min	Winte	r 0.923	0.0	5152			
	<u>@</u> 1	982-	2014 XP	Solution	าร			
©1982-2014 XP Solutions								

20 Milton Park Abingdon Oxfordshire OX14 4SH Date 24/07/2015 14:56 Pile Plots 37-43 - Trench So Causeway Source Control 2014.1.1 Rainfall Details Rainfall Model Return Period (years) MS-60 (mm) Sources Storm (mins) 15 Ratio R Summer Storms Yes Climate Change % +30 Time Area Diagram Total Area (ha) 0.004 Time (mins) Area From: To: (ha) 0 4 0.004	RPS P&D		Page 3
Abingdon Date 24/07/2015 14:56 Pile Plots 37-43 - Trench So Checked by JR Pile Plots 37-43 - Trench So Checked by Causeway Source Control 2014.1.1 Rainfall Model FSR Winter Storms Yes Region England and Wales Cv (Winter) 0.550 Region England and Wales Cv (Winter) 0.560 Model (years) 100 Cv (Summer) 0.750 Region England and Wales Cv (Winter) 0.540 Model Storms Storm (mins) 10 Ratio R 0.400 Shortest Storm (mins) 10 Summer Storms Yes Time Area Diagram Total Area (ha) 0.004 Fine (mins) Area From: To: (ha) 0 4 0.004	20 Milton Park	Land North of Green Lane	
Oxfordshire OX14 4SH Trench Soakaways Date 24/07/2015 14:56 Designed by JR File Plots 37-43 - Trench So Causeway Source Control 2014.1.1 Rainfall Details Rainfall Model FSR Winter Storms Yes Return Period (years) 100 Cr (Summer) 0.750 M5-60 (mm) 20.000 Shortest Storm (mins) 15 Ratio R 0.400 Longest Storm (mins) 1080 Summer Storms Yes Climate Change \$ +30 Time Area Diagram Total Area (ha) 0.004 Time (ming) Area Prom: To: (ha) 0 4 0.004	Abingdon	Plots 37-43	4
Date 24/07/2015 14:56 File Plots 37-43 - Trench So Causeway Causeway Source Control 2014.1.1 Rainfall Model Return Period (years) Return Period (years) Retion England and Wales V (Winter) 0.840 MS-60 tmm) 20.000 Shortest Storm (mins) 1080 Summer Storme Yes Climate Change \$ -30 Time Area Diagram Total Area From: To: (ha) 0 4 0.004 0 4 0.004	Oxfordshire OX14 4SH	Trench Soakaways	Misco
File Plots 37-43 - Trench So Checked by Causeway Source Control 2014.1.1 Rainfall Model FS Winter Storms Yes Return Period (years) 150 Cv (Sumer) 0.750 Kegion England and Wales Cv (Winter) 0.840 MS-60 (ma) 2.000 Shortsat Storm (mins) 1080 Summer Storms Yes Climate Change t *30 Time Area Diagram Total Area (ha) 0.004 Time (mins) Area Prom: To: (ha) 0 4 0.004	Date 24/07/2015 14:56	Designed by JR	
Causeway Source Control 2014.1.1 Rainfall Details Reatinfall Model FSR Winter Storms Yes Return Period (years) 100 Cv (Summer) 0.750 MS-60 (mm) 20.000 Shortset Storm (mins) 105 Summer Storms Yes Climate Change % +30 Time Area Diagram Total Area (ha) 0.004 Time (mins) Area From: To: (ha) 0 4 0.004 Summer Storms To Store	File Plots 37-43 - Trench So	Checked by	Diamage
Rainfall Details Rainfall Model Return Period (years) Note of the station of the	Causeway	Source Control 2014.1.1	
Rainfall Model FSR Ninter Storms Yes Region England and Wels CV (Winter) 0.840 MS-60 (mm) 20.000 Shortest Storm (mins) 100 Summer Storms Yes Climate Change % +30 Time Area Diagram Total Area (ha) 0.004 District (ha) 0 4 0.004			
Rainfall Model FER Winter Storms Yes Return Period (Years) 100 CV (Summer) 0.750 Region England and Wales CV (Winter) 0.840 M5-60 (mm) 20.000 Shortest Storm (mins) 10080 Summer Storms Yes Climate Change \$ +30 Time Area Diagram Total Area (ha) 0.004 Time (mins) Area From: To: (ha) 0 4 0.004	Ra	infall Details	
Time Area Diagram Total Area (ha) 0.004 Time (ming) Area From: To: (ha) 0 4 0.004	Rainfall Model Return Period (years) Region Engla M5-60 (mm) Ratio R Summer Storms	FSR Winter Storms 1 100 Cv (Summer) 0.1 and and Wales Cv (Winter) 0.3 20.000 Shortest Storm (mins) 0.400 Longest Storm (mins) 100 Yes Climate Change %	Yes 750 840 15 080 +30
Total Area (ha) 0.004 Time (mine) Area From: To: (ha) 0 4 0.004	Tir	ne Area Diagram	
Time (mins) Area From: To: (ha) 0 4 0.004	Tota	al Area (ha) 0.004	
Brom: To: (ha) 0 4 0.004	T	ime (mins) Area	
	Fr	om: To: (ha)	
		0 4 0.004	
SINGLARY STATES	©1982-	-2014 XP Solutions	

RPS P&D		Page 4
20 Milton Park	Land North of Green Lane	
Abingdon	Plots 37-43	L'
Oxfordshire OX14 4SH	Trench Soakaways	Micro
Date 24/07/2015 14:56	Designed by JR	
File Plots 37-43 - Trench So	Checked by	Diamaye
Causeway	Source Control 2014.1.1	

Model Details

Storage is Online Cover Level (m) 76.250

Trench Soakaway Structure

Infiltration	Coefficient Base	(m/hr)	0.06120	Trench Width (m)	2.5
Infiltration	Coefficient Side	(m/hr)	0.06120	Trench Length (m)	4.5
	Safety 1	Factor	2.0	Slope (1:X)	1000.0
	Poi	rosity	0.30	Cap Volume Depth (m)	0.450
	Invert Leve	el (m)	75.300	Cap Infiltration Depth (m)	0.450

©1982-2014 XP Solutions

RPS P&D				Page 1		
20 Milton Park						
Abingdon	Permeabl	Permeable Road				
Oxfordshire OX14 4SH	- Com					
Date 24/07/2015 15:13	Designed	by ,TR		MICIO		
Eile Dermachle Dead grav	Charled	by		Drainage		
File Permeable Road.sicx	Checked	by hambural C	014 1 1	_		
Causeway	source (ontrol 2	2014.1.1			
Cummonar of Dogulta f	om 100 m	Dot Dot I	m Deviad (+20%)			
Summary of Results i	or ion ye	ear Retui	rn Period (+30%)	<u> </u>		
Half Dra	ain Time :	78 minute	s.			
Storm Max	Max	Max	Max Status			
Event Level	Depth Inf	iltration	Volume			
(m)	(m)	(1/s)	(m ³)			
15 min Summer 75.376	0.276	4.1	20.0 ОК			
30 min Summer 75.413	0.313	4.1	25.4 Flood Risk			
60 min Summer 75.437	0.337	4.1	28.8 Flood Risk			
120 min Summer 75.444	0.344	4.1	29.8 Flood Risk			
180 min Summer 75.438	U.338 0 327	4.1	28.9 Flood Risk			
360 min Summer 75 404	0.327	4.1 4 1	27.3 Flood Risk			
480 min Summer 75.383	0.283	4.1	21.1 0 K			
600 min Summer 75.367	0.267	4.0	18.7 OK			
720 min Summer 75.353	0.253	3.8	16.8 ОК			
960 min Summer 75.329	0.229	3.4	13.8 ОК			
1440 min Summer 75.293	0.193	2.9	9.8 OK			
2160 min Summer 75.256	0.156	2.3	6.4 O K			
2880 min Summer 75.231	0.131	2.0	4.5 ОК			
4320 min Summer 75.200	0.100	1.5	2.6 OK			
5760 min Summer 75.181	0.081	1.2	1.7 OK			
7200 min Summer 75.167	0.067	1.0	1.2 OK			
10080 min Summer 75 151	0.058	0.9	0.9 OK			
15 min Winter 75.396	0.296	4.1	22.8 OK			
Storm	Rain	Flooded '	Time-Peak			
Event	(mm/hr)	Volume	(mins)			
		(m³)				
15 min Summ	er 128.285	0.0	17			
30 min Summ	er 84.226	0.0	31			
60 min Summ	er 52.662	0.0	56			
120 min Summ	er 31.800	0.0	88			
180 min Summ	er 23.353	0.0	122			
240 min Summ	er 18.644	0.0	156 222			
480 min Summ	er 10 700	0.0	222 286			
600 min Summ	er 9.043	0.0	348			
720 min Summ	er 7.823	0.0	410			
960 min Summ	er 6.219	0.0	530			
1440 min Summ	er 4.493	0.0	768			
2160 min Summ	er 3.241	0.0	1128			
2880 min Summ	er 2.568	0.0	1496			
4320 min Summ	er 1.847	0.0	2204			
5760 min Summ	er 1.461	0.0	2936			
7200 min Summ	r 1.217	0.0	30/2 1276			
10080 min Summ	EI I.U48 Er N.902	0.0	= 3 / 0 51 20			
15 min Wint	er 128.285	0.0	17			
©1982-2014 XP Solutions						

RPS P&D					Page 2
20 Milton Park	Land Nor	th of Gr	een La	ne	
Abingdon	lon Permeable Road				4
Oxfordshire OX14 4SH					- Con
Date 24/07/2015 15:13	Designed	by JR			MICLO
Filo Dermochle Bood grav	Chocked	by on			Drainage
File Permeable Road.sicx	Checked		011 1	1	
Causeway	Source C	ontrol 2	3014.1.	1	
	fan 100 m	an Datio			
Summary of Results	tor 100 ye	ar Retui	n Peri	.0a (+30%)	
Storm Max	Max	May	Мач	Status	
Event Leve	l Depth Inf	iltration	Volume	Blacus	
(m)	(m)	(1/s)	(m ³)		
30 min Winter 75.44	40 0.340	4.1	29.2	Flood Risk	
60 min Winter 75.40	0.369	4.1	33.5	Flood Risk	
120 min Winter 75.4	53 0 363	4.1	32 6	Flood Risk	
240 min Winter 75 44	46 0.346	4 1	30.2	Flood Risk	
360 min Winter 75.4	12 0.312	4.1	25.1	Flood Risk	
480 min Winter 75.38	31 0.281	4.1	20.8	0 K	
600 min Winter 75.30	50 0.260	3.9	17.7	ОК	
720 min Winter 75.34	41 0.241	3.6	15.3	O K	
960 min Winter 75.33	11 0.211	3.1	11.7	O K	
1440 min Winter 75.20	57 0.167	2.5	7.3	O K	
2160 min Winter 75.22	26 0.126	1.9	4.2	ОК	
2880 min Winter 75.20		1.5	2.7	ОК	
4320 min Winter 75.1	74 0.074	1.1	1.4	O K	
7200 min Winter 75.14	49 0 049	0.7	0.5	O K	
8640 min Winter 75.14	46 0.046	0.6	0.5	ОК	
10080 min Winter 75.14	43 0.043	0.5	0.5	ОК	
Storm	Rain	Flooded	Time-Pea	k	
Event	(mm/hr)	Volume (m3)	(mins)		
		(111.2)			
30 min Wir	nter 84.226	0.0	3	1	
60 min Wir	nter 52.662	0.0	5	8	
120 min Wir	nter 31.800	0.0	9	6	
180 min Wir	nter 23.353	0.0	13	4	
240 min Wir	1 ter 18.644	0.0	17	0	
200 MII WII 480 min Wir	10 = 10.543	0.0	∠4 2∩	2	
400 min Wir 600 min Wir	iter 9.043	0.0	36	4	
720 min Wir	nter 7.823	0.0	42	8	
960 min Wir	nter 6.219	0.0	55	0	
1440 min Wir	nter 4.493	0.0	79	2	
2160 min Wir	nter 3.241	0.0	114	4	
2880 min Wir	nter 2.568	0.0	149	6	
4320 min Wir	nter 1.847	0.0	220	0	
5760 min Wir	1 ter 1.461	0.0	293	0	
7200 MIN WI 8640 min Wir	1 ter $1 0.48$	0.0	307 430	2 4	
10080 min Wir	nter 0.923	0.0	513	6	
©198	2-2014 XP	Solution	S		

RPS P&D		Page 3
20 Milton Park	Land North of Green Lane	
Abingdon	Permeable Road	4
Oxfordshire OX14 4SH		Micco
Date 24/07/2015 15:13	Designed by JR	
File Permeable Road.srcx	Checked by	Digiliada
Causeway	Source Control 2014.1.1	
Ra	infall Details	
Rainfall Model Return Period (years) Region Engla M5-60 (mm) Ratio R Summer Storms <u>Tir</u> Tota Fr	FSR Winter Storms M 100 Cv (Summer) 0.7 and and Wales Cv (Winter) 0.8 20.000 Shortest Storm (mins) 0.400 Longest Storm (mins) 100 Yes Climate Change % me Area Diagram al Area (ha) 0.103 ime (mins) Area om: To: (ha)	Zes 750 340 15 080 -30
	0 4 0 102	
	0 4 0.105	
©1982-	-2014 XP Solutions	

RPS P&D		Page 4
20 Milton Park	Land North of Green Lane	
Abingdon	Permeable Road	L'
Oxfordshire OX14 4SH		Micro
Date 24/07/2015 15:13	Designed by JR	
File Permeable Road.srcx	Checked by	Diamaye
Causeway	Source Control 2014.1.1	·

Model Details

Storage is Online Cover Level (m) 75.700

Porous Car Park Structure

Infiltration Coefficient Base (m/hr)	0.06120	Width (m)	21.9
Membrane Percolation (mm/hr)	1000	Length (m)	21.9
Max Percolation (l/s)	133.2	Slope (1:X)	80.0
Safety Factor	2.0	Depression Storage (mm)	5
Porosity	0.30	Evaporation (mm/day)	3
Invert Level (m)	75.100	Cap Volume Depth (m)	0.400

©1982-2014 XP Solutions

RPS P&D		Page 1
20 Milton Park	Land North of Green Lane	
Abingdon	Attenuation Basin 1	4
Oxfordshire OX14 4SH		- Com
$D_{2} = 20/07/2015 = 10.19$	Designed by IP	——— MIC(O
Date 30/07/2013 10:19	Charled by UK	Drainage
File Pond I Hydrobrake.srcx	Checked by	
Causeway	Source Control 2014.1.1	
Summary of Results f	or 100 year Return Period	(+30%)
Halt Dra	in Time : 1188 minutes.	
Storm Max Max	Max Max Max 1	Max Status
Event Level Depth In	nfiltration Control Σ Outflow Vo	lume
(m) (m)	(1/s) $(1/s)$ $(1/s)$ $($	m ³)
15 min Summer 75.642 0.142		.18.0 Flood Risk
50 min Summer 75.084 0.184		89 5 Flood Risk
120 min Summer 75.724 0.224		22 9 Flood Risk
180 min Summer 75 779 0 279		239.3 Flood Risk
240 min Summer 75,789 0,289	0.0 2.2 2.2 2	48.6 Flood Risk
360 min Summer 75,800 0 300	0.0 2.2 2.2 2	258.3 Flood Risk
480 min Summer 75.804 0.304	0.0 2.2 2.2 2	261.9 Flood Risk
600 min Summer 75.803 0.303	0.0 2.2 2.2 2	261.7 Flood Risk
720 min Summer 75.801 0.301	0.0 2.2 2.2 2	259.1 Flood Risk
960 min Summer 75.790 0.290	0.0 2.2 2.2 2	49.4 Flood Risk
1440 min Summer 75.772 0.272	0.0 2.2 2.2 2	33.1 Flood Risk
2160 min Summer 75.753 0.253	0.0 2.2 2.2 2	15.2 Flood Risk
2880 min Summer 75.735 0.235	0.0 2.2 2.2 1	.99.4 Flood Risk
4320 min Summer 75.702 0.202	0.0 2.2 2.2 1	.69.8 Flood Risk
5760 min Summer 75.671 0.171	0.0 2.2 2.2 1	.42.3 Flood Risk
7200 min Summer 75.641 0.141	0.0 2.2 2.2 1	.17.0 Flood Risk
8640 min Summer 75.614 0.114	0.0 2.2 2.2	93.9 Flood Risk
10080 min Summer 75.588 0.088	0.0 2.2 2.2	72.2 ОК
15 min Winter 75.659 0.159	0.0 2.2 2.2 1	.32.4 Flood Risk
Storm	Rain Flooded Discharge Time-Pe	ak
Event (1	m/hr) Volume Volume (mins)
	(m ³) (m ³)	
15 min Summer 1	28.285 0.0 119.9	19
30 min Summer	34.226 0.0 157.6	34
60 min Summer	52.662 0.0 197.0	64
120 min Summer	31.800 0.0 238.1 1	.24
180 min Summer	23.353 0.0 262.2 1	.82
240 min Summer	.8.644 0.0 279.1 2	:42
360 min Summer	.3.543 0.0 304.4 3	62
480 min Summer	0.792 0.0 323.4 4	:82
600 min Summer	9.043 0.0 338.6 6	02
720 min Summer	7.823 0.0 351.5 7	20
960 min Summer	6.219 0.0 361.7 9	32
1440 min Summer	4.493 0.0 355.0 11	.40
2160 min Summer	3.241 0.0 437.4 15	32
2880 min Summer	2.568 U.O 461.8 19	-32
4320 min Summer	1.84/ U.U 498.3 27	04
5/60 min Summer	1.401 U.U 525.1 35	00
640 min Summer	1 048 0 0 565 2 50	20
10080 min Summer	0.923 0.0 505.2 50 0.923 0.0 581.4 58	348
15 min Winter 1	28.285 0.0 134.3	19
©1982	-2014 XP Solutions	

RPS P&D							Page 2	
20 Milton Park		Land	North	of Green	Lane			
Abingdon		Atte	nuatior	n Basin 1			4	
Oxfordshire 0X14	4SH						2	m
Date $30/07/2015$ 10	•10	Degi	aned by	7 .TP			— MICLO	
	• 1	Desi		Y UIC			Draina	16
File Pond I Hydrob	rake.srcx	Chec	кеа ру					
Causeway		Sour	ce Cont	crol 2014	.1.1			
Summar	y of Results	for 10)0 year	Return F	Period	(+30	8)	
Storm	Max Max	Max	: 1	Max M	ax	Max	Status	
Event	Level Depth	Infiltra	ation Co	ntrol Σ Ou	tflow	Volume		
	(m) (m)	(1/s	()	1/s) (1	/s)	(m³)		
30 min Winter	75,705 0,205		0.0	2.2	2.2	172.7	Flood Risk	
60 min Winter	75.750 0.250		0.0	2.2	2.2	213.1	Flood Risk	
120 min Winter	75.793 0.293		0.0	2.2	2.2	251.7	Flood Risk	
180 min Winter	75.814 0.314		0.0	2.2	2.2	271.3	Flood Risk	
240 min Winter	75.826 0.326		0.0	2.2	2.2	282.7	Flood Risk	
360 min Winter	75.840 0.340		0.0	2.3	2.3	295.6	Flood Risk	
480 min Winter	75.846 0.346		0.0	2.3	2.3	301.9	Flood Risk	
600 min Winter	75.849 0.349		0.0	2.3	2.3	304.1	Flood Risk	
720 min Winter	75.848 0.348		0.0	2.3	2.3	303.7	Flood Risk	
960 min Winter	75.843 0.343		0.0	2.3	2.3	298.2	Flood Risk	
1440 min Winter	75.820 0.320		0.0	2.2	2.2	277.3	Flood Risk	
2160 min Winter	75.794 0.294		0.0	2.2	2.2	253.2	Flood Risk	
2880 min Winter	75.770 0.270		0.0	2.2	2.2	230.8	Flood Risk	
5760 min Winter	75.721 0.221		0.0	2.2	2.2	111 0	Flood Risk	
7200 min Winter	75.674 0.174		0.0	2.2	2.2	107 0	Flood Risk	
8640 min Winter	75.587 0.087		0.0	2.2	2.2	71.0	O K	
10080 min Winter	75.545 0.045		0.0	2.2	2.2	36.1	O K	
	Storm	Rain	Flooded	Discharge	Time-	Peak		
	Event	(mm/hr)	Volume	Volume	(min	us)		
		(,	(m ³)	(m ³)	、			
	30 min Winter	84.226	0.0	176.3		33		
	60 min Winter	52.662	0.0	220.6		62		
	20 min Winter	31.800	0.0	266.8		122		
	180 min Winter	23.353	0.0	293.8		740 T80		
	840 min Winter	13 543	0.0	312.7		⊿4U 356		
	180 min Winter	10 792	0.0	340.8		472		
6	500 min Winter	9.043	0.0	363.0		586		
	20 min Winter	7.823	0.0	362.9		700		
9	60 min Winter	6.219	0.0	363.0		922		
14	40 min Winter	4.493	0.0	362.7	:	1326		
21	60 min Winter	3.241	0.0	489.7	:	1644		
28	380 min Winter	2.568	0.0	517.5	:	2104		
43	320 min Winter	1.847	0.0	558.3	:	2984		
57	760 min Winter	1.461	0.0	589.1		3816		
72	200 min Winter	1.217	0.0	613.1		4616		
86	40 min Winter	1.048	0.0	633.0		5368		
100	080 min Winter	0.923	0.0	650.7		5952		
	©198	82-2014	XP Sol	utions				
RPS P&D		Page 3						
--	---	--------------------------------						
20 Milton Park	Land North of Green Lane							
Abingdon	Attenuation Basin 1	\mathcal{L}						
Oxfordshire OX14 4SH		Micro						
Date 30/07/2015 10:19	Designed by JR	Dcainago						
File Pond 1 Hydrobrake.srcx	Checked by	Diamaye						
Causeway	Source Control 2014.1.1							
Ra	infall Details							
Rainfall Model Return Period (years) Region Engl M5-60 (mm) Ratio R Summer Storms	FSR Winter Storms 5 100 Cv (Summer) 0.7 and and Wales Cv (Winter) 0.8 20.000 Shortest Storm (mins) 0.400 Longest Storm (mins) 100 Yes Climate Change %	750 340 15 980 -30						
Tin	me Area Diagram							
Tot	al Area (ha) 0.500							
T. Fr	ime (mins) Area rom: To: (ha)							
	0 4 0.500							
<u>ଜ</u> ୀ 98.2-	-2014 XP Solutions							
01905								

RPS P&D						Page 4
20 Milton Park		Land N	lorth of (Green Lan	9	
Abingdon		Attenu	ation Ba	sin 1		4
Oxfordshire OX14 4SH						- Com
Date 30/07/2015 10:19		Design	ied by JR			
File Pond 1 Hydrobrake	.srcx	Checke	ed by			Urainage
Causeway		Source	Control	2014.1.1		
		Model D	etails			
St	corage is O	nline Cov	ver Level ((m) 75.900		
	Infiltr	ation Ba	asin Stru	cture		
Infiltration Infiltration	Inve Coefficient Coefficient	ert Level Base (m Side (m	(m) 75.5 /hr) 0.000 /hr) 0.000	00 Safety F 00 Por 00	actor 2.0 osity 1.00)
Depth (m) Area (m ²) Depth (m) Area (m ²)						
	0.000	800.0	0.400	968.0		
Hyd	dro-Brake	Optimur	n® Outflo	w Control		
	Uni	t Referer	nce MD-SHE-	-0073-3000-1	L700-3000	
	Desi	gn Head (m)		1.700	
	Design	Flow (1/	′s) ⊙™	C	3.0	
		Objecti	.ve Minimi	ise upstream	n storage	
	Di	ameter (n	nm)	1.1.1	73	
	Inver	t Level (m)		74.930	
Minimum Out	let Pipe Di Marhala Di	ameter (n	nm)		100	
Suggested	Mainore Dr	ameter (m			1200	
	Control P	oints	Head (m) Flow (l/s)	
Desi	gn Point (C	Calculate	d) 1.70	0 3.	0	
		Flush-Flo	o™ 0.32 o® 0.65	2 2.	9	
Mean	Flow over	Head Ran	ge 0.05	- 2.	3	
The hydrological calculations have been based on the Head/Discharge relationship for the Hydro-Brake Optimum® as specified. Should another type of control device other than a Hydro-Brake Optimum® be utilised then these storage routing calculations will be invalidated						
Depth (m) Flow (1/s) Dep	pth (m) Flo	w (l/s)	Depth (m)	Flow (1/s)	Depth (m)	Flow (l/s)
0.100 1.9	1.200	2.6	3.000	3.9	7.000	5.8
0.200 2.3	1.400	2.7	3.500	4.2	7.500	6.0
0.300 2.4	1.800 1.800	∠.9 3 1	4.000	4.5	8.500	o.∠ 6 4
0.500 2.3	2.000	3.2	5.000	5.0	9.000	6.5
0.600 2.1	2.200	3.4	5.500	5.2	9.500	6.7
0.800 2.1	2.400	3.5	6.000	5.4		
1.000 2.4	2.000	5.01	0.300	5.01		
	©1982	-2014 x	P Soluti	ons		
	GT 202	LULT A				

RPS P&D					Page 1
20 Milton Park	Land No	orth of Gr	reen Lai	ne	
Abingdon	Attenua	ation Pond	f		4
Oxfordshire OX14 4SH					- Com
Date 30/07/2015 11:51	Designe	ed by JR			
File Pond Cascade casx	Checker	d by			Drainage
Causeway	Source	Control 2	2014 1	1	
	Dource			<u> </u>	
Cascade Summary	of Res	ults for 1	Pond 2.	srcx	
Upstream	c	utflow To C	Overflow	То	
Structures	8				
David 1 Washeshard			()7	-)	
Pond I Hydrobrak	ce.srcx	(None)	(Non	ie)	
Storm Max	c Max	Max N	Max S	tatus	
Event Leve	el Depth	Control Vo	lume		
(m)) (m)	(l/s) (m³)		
15 min Summor 74 2	62 0 112	2 0	72 0 10	od Pick	
30 min Summer 74.3	95 0.145	2.9 3.7	95.4 Flo	od Risk	
60 min Summer 74.4	30 0.180	3.8 1	18.6 Flo	od Risk	
120 min Summer 74.4	65 0.215	3.8 1	42.9 Flo	od Risk	
180 min Summer 74.4	85 0.235	3.8 1	57.3 Flo	od Risk	
240 min Summer 74.4	99 0.249	3.8 1	67.2 Flo	od Risk	
360 min Summer 74.5	19 0.269	3.8 I 2 9 1	81.3 FIO	od Risk od Pick	
600 min Summer 74.5	42 0.292	3.8 1	91.0 F10 97.8 Flo	od Risk	
720 min Summer 74.5	49 0.299	3.8 2	02.6 Flo	od Risk	
960 min Summer 74.5	56 0.306	3.8 2	07.8 Flo	od Risk	
1440 min Summer 74.5	54 0.304	3.8 2	06.3 Flo	od Risk	
2160 min Summer 74.5	40 0.290	3.8 1	96.3 Flo	od Risk	
2880 min Summer 74.5 4320 min Summer 74.4	23 U.2/3 86 0 236	3.8 1 3.8 1	57 8 Flo	od Risk od Risk	
5760 min Summer 74.4	52 0.202	3.8 1	34.3 Flo	od Risk	
7200 min Summer 74.4	29 0.179	3.8 1	18.2 Flo	od Risk	
8640 min Summer 74.4	14 0.164	3.8 1	08.3 Flo	od Risk	
Charmen D				Deel	
Storm R	ain fic n/br) Vo	lume Volu	me (m	ing)	
	u/III) VO. (1	n ³) (m ³)	1118 /	
		, ,	,		
15 min Summer 128	8.285	0.0 16	54.1	19	
30 min Summer 84	1.226 2.662	0.0 20	0.9. ס סר	34 64	
120 min Summer 3	1.800	0.0 36	53.2	124	
180 min Summer 23	3.353	0.0 39	99.1	182	
240 min Summer 18	3.644	0.0 42	23.8	242	
360 min Summer 13	3.543	0.0 45	58.8	362	
480 min Summer 10).792	0.0 48	3.0	482	
720 min Summer	7.823	0.0 50	11.5	722	
960 min Summer	5.219	0.0 52	21.4	960	
1440 min Summer	4.493	0.0 51	13.9	1342	
2160 min Summer 3	3.241	0.0 68	39.1	1656	
2880 min Summer	2.568	0.0 72	26.6	1992	
4320 min Summer	L.847 1 461	0.0 97	/8.4 35 6	2724	
7200 min Summer	1.217	0.0 85	70.0	4032	
8640 min Summer	1.048	0.0 89	97.1	4672	
	0014				
©1982-	-ZUI4 XI	Solution	ıs		

RPS P&D		Page 2
20 Milton Park	Land North of Green Lane	
Abingdon	Attenuation Pond	L.
Oxfordshire OX14 4SH		Micco
Date 30/07/2015 11:51	Designed by JR	
File Pond Cascade.casx	Checked by	Diginarie
Causeway	Source Control 2014.1.1	·

Cascade Summary of Results for Pond 2.srcx

Storm		Mav	Mav	Mav	Mav	Stat	-110	
	Even	t	Level	Depth	Control	Volume	beat	- 45
		•	(m)	(m)	(1/g)	(m ³)		
			(111)	(111)	(1/6)	(111)		
10080	min	Summer	74.406	0.156	3.8	102.2	Flood	Risk
15	min	Winter	74.375	0.125	3.3	81.4	Flood	Risk
30	min	Winter	74.412	0.162	3.8	106.5	Flood	Risk
60	min	Winter	74.450	0.200	3.8	132.6	Flood	Risk
120	min	Winter	74.489	0.239	3.8	159.8	Flood	Risk
180	min	Winter	74.511	0.261	3.8	175.7	Flood	Risk
240	min	Winter	74.526	0.276	3.8	186.6	Flood	Risk
360	min	Winter	74.548	0.298	3.8	201.8	Flood	Risk
480	min	Winter	74.562	0.312	3.8	212.2	Flood	Risk
600	min	Winter	74.572	0.322	3.8	219.5	Flood	Risk
720	min	Winter	74.579	0.329	3.8	224.7	Flood	Risk
960	min	Winter	74.587	0.337	3.8	230.6	Flood	Risk
1440	min	Winter	74.589	0.339	3.8	232.0	Flood	Risk
2160	min	Winter	74.572	0.322	3.8	219.2	Flood	Risk
2880	min	Winter	74.549	0.299	3.8	202.9	Flood	Risk
4320	min	Winter	74.491	0.241	3.8	161.2	Flood	Risk
5760	min	Winter	74.437	0.187	3.8	124.0	Flood	Risk
7200	min	Winter	74.411	0.161	3.8	106.2	Flood	Risk
8640	min	Winter	74.400	0.150	3.7	98.4	Flood	Risk
10080	min	Winter	74.392	0.142	3.6	93.2	Flood	Risk

	Stor: Even	m t	Rain (mm/hr)	Flooded Volume (m³)	Discharge Volume (m³)	Time-Peak (mins)
10080	min	Summer	0.923	0.0	919.1	5352
15	min	Winter	128.285	0.0	182.7	19
30	min	Winter	84.226	0.0	224.2	33
60	min	Winter	52.662	0.0	336.8	62
120	min	Winter	31.800	0.0	405.8	122
180	min	Winter	23.353	0.0	444.5	180
240	min	Winter	18.644	0.0	470.1	240
360	min	Winter	13.543	0.0	503.3	358
480	min	Winter	10.792	0.0	520.8	476
600	min	Winter	9.043	0.0	529.2	592
720	min	Winter	7.823	0.0	534.2	708
960	min	Winter	6.219	0.0	533.8	936
1440	min	Winter	4.493	0.0	508.5	1384
2160	min	Winter	3.241	0.0	771.3	1968
2880	min	Winter	2.568	0.0	813.3	2220
4320	min	Winter	1.847	0.0	869.0	2984
5760	min	Winter	1.461	0.0	937.3	3520
7200	min	Winter	1.217	0.0	975.2	4040
8640	min	Winter	1.048	0.0	1005.9	4680
10080	min	Winter	0.923	0.0	1030.8	5448
		©198	82-2014	XP Sol	utions	

RPS P&D		Page 3						
20 Milton Park	Land North of Green Lane							
Abingdon	Attenuation Pond	4						
Oxfordshire OX14 4SH		- Com						
Date 30/07/2015 11:51	Designed by JR	MICLO						
File Pond Cascade.casx	Checked by	Drainage						
Causeway	Source Control 2014.1.1							
Cascade Rainfall Details for Pond 2.srcx								
Rainfall Model	FSR Winter Storms	les						
Return Period (years)	100 Cv (Summer) 0.	750						
Region Engla	and and Wales Cv (Winter) 0.8	340						
M5-60 (mm) Ratio R	0.400 Longest Storm (mins)	15						
Summer Storms	Yes Climate Change %	+30						
Tin	ne Area Diagram							
Tota	al Area (ha) 0.300							
	ime (ming) lres							
- Fr	om: To: (ha)							
	0 4 0.300							
©1982-	-2014 XP Solutions							

RPS P&D	Page 4							
20 Milton Park	Land North of Green Lane							
Abingdon	Attenuation Pond							
Oxfordshire OX14 4SH	Visco							
Date 30/07/2015 11:51	Designed by JR							
File Pond Cascade.casx	Checked by							
Causeway	Source Control 2014.1.1							
Cascade Model Details for Pond 2.srcx								
Storage is On	nline Cover Level (m) 74.600							
Tank	or Dond Structure							
<u></u>								
Inve	ert Level (m) 74.250							
Depth (m) Are	ea (m ²) Depth (m) Area (m ²)							
0.000	635.0 0.350 738.0							
Hydro-Br	cake® Outflow Control							
Design Head (m) 0.900 Hydr Design Flow (1/s) 5.0	ro-Brake® Type Md4 Invert Level (m) 74.250 Diameter (mm) 82							
Depth (m) Flow (1/s) Depth (m) Flow	w (l/s) Depth (m) Flow (l/s) Depth (m) Flow (l/s)							
0.100 2.5 1.200	5.7 3.000 9.1 7.000 13.9							
0.200 3.7 1.400	6.2 3.500 9.8 7.500 14.3							
0.300 3.2 1.600	6.6 4.000 10.5 8.000 14.8							
0.400 3.4 1.800	7.0 4.500 11.1 8.500 15.3							
0.500 3.7 2.000	7.4 5.000 11.7 9.000 15.7							
0.600 4.1 2.200	7.8 5.500 12.3 9.500 16.2							
0.800 4.7 2.400	8.1 6.000 12.8							
1.000 5.2 2.600	8.4 6.500 13.4							
©1982-	-2014 XP Solutions							

RPS P&D					Page 1
20 Milton Park	Land Nor	th of Gree	en Lane	9	
Abingdon	Plots 45				4
Oxfordshire OX14 4SH	Trench S	oakawavs			- Com
Date 30/07/2015 12:20	Designed	by JR			- MICLO
File Plot 45 srcy	Checked	by			Drainage
Caugoway	Checked	by	1 1 1		
Causeway	Source c	.0111101 201	.4.1.1		
Summary of Regults f	0r 100 vc	ar Peturn	Derio	4 (+308)	
Summary OF Results I	01 100 ye	ear Recurn	FELIO	u (150%)	
Half Dra	in Time :	133 minutes.			
	in time .	iss mindees.			
Storm Max	Max	Max	Max	Status	
Event Leve	el Depth I	nfiltration	Volume		
(m)	(m)	(l/s)	(m³)		
15 min Summer 75.4	97 0.397	0.1	1.1	ОК	
30 min Summer 75.5	99 0.499	0.1	1.4	0 K	
60 min Summer 75.6	72 0.572	0.1	1.6	ОК	
120 min Summer 75.6	91 0.591	0.1	1.7	O K	
180 min Summer 75.6	80 0.580	0.1	1.6	ОК	
240 min Summer 75.6	60 0.560	0.1	1.6	ОК	
360 min Summer 75.6 480 min Summer 75.5	18 U.518 79 0 479	0.1	1.5 1.3	OK	
600 min Summer 75.5	43 0.443	0.1	1.2	ОК	
720 min Summer 75.5	09 0.409	0.1	1.1	ОК	
960 min Summer 75.4	48 0.348	0.1	1.0	ОК	
1440 min Summer 75.3	50 0.250	0.1	0.7	ОК	
2160 min Summer 75.2	47 0.147	0.1	0.4	ОК	
2880 min Summer 75.1	84 0.084	0.1	0.2	ОК	
4320 min Summer 75.1 5760 min Summer 75.1	44 0.044 35 0 035	0.1	0.1	OK	
7200 min Summer 75.1	30 0.030	0.1	0.1	0 K	
8640 min Summer 75.1	25 0.025	0.0	0.1	ОК	
10080 min Summer 75.1	22 0.022	0.0	0.1	ОК	
15 min Winter 75.5	48 0.448	0.1	1.3	O K	
Storm	Rain	Flooded Tim	ne-Peak		
Event	(mm/hr)	Volume (:	mins)		
		(m³)			
15 min Cumm	om 100 00E	0 0	10		
30 min Summ	er 84.226	0.0	18 32		
60 min Summ	er 52.662	0.0	60		
120 min Summ	er 31.800	0.0	102		
180 min Summ	er 23.353	0.0	132		
240 min Summ	er 18.644	0.0	168		
360 min Summ	er 13.543	0.0	236		
480 min Summ	er 10.792	0.0	304		
720 min Summ	er 7822	0.0	372 440		
960 min Summ	er 6.219	0.0	568		
1440 min Summ	er 4.493	0.0	820		
2160 min Summ	er 3.241	0.0	1172		
2880 min Summ	er 2.568	0.0	1504		
4320 min Summ	er 1.847	0.0	2200		
5760 min Summ	er 1.461	0.0	2936		
8640 min Summ	er 1.048	0.0	4400		
10080 min Summ	er 0.923	0.0	5136		
15 min Wint	er 128.285	0.0	18		
©1982-	-2014 XP	Solutions			

RPS P&D								Page 2
20 Milton Pa	ark]	Land No	rth of G	reen Lan	е	
Abingdon]	Plots 4	5			L.
Oxfordshire	OX14	4SH	5	French	Soakaway	S		Micco
Date 30/07/2	2015 12	:20]	Designe	d by JR			
File Plot 4	5.srcx		(Checked	by			Didilio
Causeway				Source	Control	2014.1.1		
	Summary	y of Resul	ts fo	r 100 y	ear Retu	rn Perio	d (+30%)	
		Storm	Max	Max	Max	Max	Status	
		Event	Level (m)	(m)	(1/s)	(m ³)		
			()	()	(_/_/	()		
	30	min Winter	75.66	5 0.565	C).1 1.6	ОК	
	120	min Winter	75 83	5 0.655 7 0 737		$\begin{array}{ccc} 1.1 & 1.8 \\ 1.1 & 1.9 \end{array}$	OK	
	180	min Winter	75.79	1 0.691	C).1 1.9	0 K	
	240	min Winter	75.74	0 0.640	C).1 1.8	ОК	
	360	min Winter	75.68	0.580	C).1 1.6	O K	
	480	min Winter	75.62	3 0.523	C).1 1.5	O K	
	600	min Winter	75.56	9 U.469	0).⊥ 1.3	O K	
	720 960	min Winter	75.43	4 0.334).1 0.9	0 K	
	1440	min Winter	75.30	1 0.201	C	0.1 0.6	ОК	
	2160	min Winter	75.17	6 0.076	C	0.1 0.2	O K	
	2880	min Winter	75.14	5 0.045	C	0.1 0.1	ОК	
	4320	min Winter	75.13	2 0.032	C C		OK	
	7200	min Winter	75.12	1 0.021	C).0 0.1	ОК	
	8640	min Winter	75.11	9 0.019	C	0.0 0.0	ОК	
	10080	min Winter	75.11	6 0.016	С	0.0 0.0	O K	
		Stor	m	Rain	Flooded	Time-Peak		
		Ever	it	(mm/hr) Volume (m ³)	(mins)		
					()			
		30 min	Winte	r 84.22	6 0.0	32		
		60 min	Winte	r 52.66	2 0.0	60 114		
		120 min	Winte	r 23.35	3 0.0	142		
		240 min	Winte	r 18.64	4 0.0	180		
		360 min	Winte	r 13.54	3 0.0	256		
		480 min	Winte	r 10.79	2 0.0	328		
		600 min 720 min	Winte:	r 9.04	3 0.0 3 0 0	400		
		720 min 960 min	Winte	r 6.21	9 0.0	470 604		
		1440 min	Winte	r 4.49	3 0.0	852		
		2160 min	Winte	r 3.24	1 0.0	1188		
		2880 min	Winte:	r 2.56	8 0.0	1468		
		4320 min	Winte:	r 1.84	7 0.0	2148		
		5/60 min 7200 min	Winte: Winte	r 1.46. r 1.21	⊥ 0.0 7 ∩ ∩	2912		
		8640 min	Winte:	r 1.04	8 0.0	4400		
		10080 min	Winte	r 0.92	3 0.0	5120		
		A.	1982-1	<u></u>	Solution	ng		
		©_	1702-2	SOTA YA	SULUCION			

RPS P&D		Page 3
20 Milton Park	Land North of Green Lane	
Abingdon	Plots 45	4
Oxfordshire OX14 4SH	Trench Soakaways	Micco
Date 30/07/2015 12:20	Designed by JR	
File Plot 45.srcx	Checked by	Dialitaye
Causeway	Source Control 2014.1.1	
Ra	infall Details	
Rainfall Model Return Period (years) Region Engla M5-60 (mm) Ratio R Summer Storms	FSR Winter Storms M 100 Cv (Summer) 0.7 and and Wales Cv (Winter) 0.8 20.000 Shortest Storm (mins) 0.400 Longest Storm (mins) 100 Yes Climate Change %	Yes 750 340 15 980 -30
<u> </u>	ne Area Diagram	
Tota	al Area (ha) 0.005	
T: Fr	ime (mins) Area om: To: (ha)	
	0 4 0.005	
<u>@1082</u> .	-2014 XP Solutions	
61902		

RPS P&D		Page 4
20 Milton Park	Land North of Green Lane	
Abingdon	Plots 45	L'
Oxfordshire OX14 4SH	Trench Soakaways	Micco
Date 30/07/2015 12:20	Designed by JR	
File Plot 45.srcx	Checked by	Diamacje
Causeway	Source Control 2014.1.1	

Model Details

Storage is Online Cover Level (m) 76.250

Trench Soakaway Structure

Infiltration	Coefficient Base (m/hr)	0.06120	Trench Width (m)	2.6
Infiltration	Coefficient Side (m/hr)	0.06120	Trench Length (m)	3.6
	Safety Factor	2.0	Slope (1:X)	1000.0
	Porosity	0.30	Cap Volume Depth (m)	0.650
	Invert Level (m)	75.100	Cap Infiltration Depth (m)	0.650

©1982-2014 XP Solutions